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ATTORNEY GENERAIijy20'19

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

33 CAPITOL STREET

CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03301-6397

GORDON J. MACDONALD

ATTORNEY GENERAL

JANE E. YOUNG

DEPUTY ATTORNEY GENERAL

November 20, 2019

The Honorable Mary Jane Wallner, Chairman
Fiscal Committee of the General Court

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

/

1. Pursuant to RSA 14:30-a, VI, authorize the Department of Justice to accept and expend a
grant in the amount of $780,038 from the US Department of Justice, Office of Justice
Programs, Bureau of Justice Assistance, New Hampshire Enhanced Collaborative Model
Task Force to Combat Human Trafficking, for the purpose of combatting human
trafficking, from the date of the Fiscal Committee of the General Court and Governor and
Executive Council approvals through June 30, 2021. 100% Federal Funds.

follows:

Funds are to be budgeted in 02-20-20-201510-1072, Human Trafficking Grant, as

Class/Expense

072-509073

085-588523

Total

Class Title

Grants-Federal

Inter-Agency Transfer out of Federal Funds

Current

SPY

2020

Budget

SO

$0

Increase

Amount

$622,553

$157,485

Revised

SPY

2020

Budget

$622,553

$157,485

$0 $780,038 $780,038

Source of Punds

000-400338 Federal Funds $0 $780,038 $780,038

Telephone 603-271-3658 • FAX 603-271-2110 • TDD Access: Relay NH 1-8O0-736-2064
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2. Upon approval of Requested Action # 1, authorize the Department of Justice to enter into
a subgrant, in the amount of $307,696, with the New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence (NHCADSV), Concord, NH (Vendor #155510, BOOl), for
the purpose of enhancing and continuing efforts of the Enhanced Collaborative Model
Task Force to Combat Human Trafficking upon approval of the Governor and Executive
Council through June 30, 2021. 100% Federal Funds.

Funding is available as follows:

02-20-20-201510-1072 . FY 2020

Human Trafficking Grant
072-509073, Contracts $307,696

EXPLANATION

The New Hampshire Department of Justice is seeking approval to accept and expend a
grant award received from the Federal Bureau of Justice Assistance, under the NH Human
Trafficking Enhanced Collaborative Model. These funds were not previously budgeted because
the grants were awarded on a competitive basis with no guarantee that New Hampshire would
receive an award.

The purpose of the Enhanced Collaborative Model Task Force to Combat Human
Trafficking is to investigate and deter human trafficking activities in the State. The Department
of Justice currently requests to subgrant a portion of these funds to the NHCADSV for a Program
Director and a consultant team to track performance and evaluate the program's effectiveness.
The grant will also be utilized to fund a dedicated full time Human Trafficking Police Officer at
the Merrimack County Sheriffs Office and a part time dedicated Human Trafficking Officer at
the New Hampshire Stale Police. Both of the officers will concentrate on human trafficking
investigations and task force initiatives statewide.

Federal award funds are budgeted to support grant activities as follows:

072-509073-Federal Grant; a federal grant, included with this item, is subgranted to the
NHCADSV. A federal grant contract is underway for the Merrimack County Sheriffs
Office to focus on the Human Trafficking Task Force initiative.
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085-588523-Federal Grant; an interagency federal grant contract is underway for the
Department of Safety for a Part Time Police Officer whose position will also focus on the
Human Trafficking Task Force initiative.

In the event federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Please let me know.if you have any questions. Thank you for yoiir consideration of this
request.

Respectfully submitted.

Gord J. MacDonald

Attorney General

#2564642



Department of Justice

GRANTS FISCAL SITUATION-FISCAL YEAR 2020

02-20-20-201510-1072 Human Trafficking

Total Agency Authorization $ 780,038
Less Expenditures to 06/30/2019 $ .

Remaining Authorization to Budget $ 780,038

Less Current Budget Authorization $
Total Available for Budgeting $ 780,038

Available to Budget at Later Date $

REQUESTED ACTION $ 780,038

Award

Grant Award Number Amount Expenses to 06/30/2019 Balance

2019-VT-BX-K024 $, 780,038 $ $  780,038
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1. REGPtENT NAME AND ADDRESS (liKWing Zip Code)

New Himpihlrc Deptnmeni of iutiiee
]J Capitol Sircti
ConcORl. NH 0SJ0|.«]97

a. AWARD NUMBER: 2019.VT-DX.K02a

3. PROJECT PERIOD: FRO.M IIVOI/2019 TO 09/30a022

BUDGET PERIOD: FROM 10,^1/2019 TO 09/30/2022

6. AWARD DATE 09/29/2019 7. ACTION

Initial2*. GRANTEE IRS/VENDOR NO.

02ltD026l8

8: SUPPLEMENT NUMBER

00

20. GRANTEE DUNS NO.

lt0X59|l27
9. PREVIOUS AWARD AMOUNT $0

J. PROJECT TTTLE

Nil Human TrafTleking Enhanced Collaboraiive Mo<UI
10. AMOUNT OF THIS AWARD S 780,038

11. TOTAL AWARD S 780.0)8

12. SPECIAL CONOmONS

THE ABOVE GRANT PROJECT IS APPROVED SUBJECT TO SUCH CONDITtONS OR LIMITATIONS AS ARE SET FORTH
ON THE ATTACHED PAGE(S).

IJ. STATUTORV AUTHORITY FOR GRANT

Thit prejeci it nipportcd under FYI9(DJA • Human Tra(rteklng)22 USC7IOS(hX2XA)

14 . CATALOG OF DOMESTIC FEDERAL A.SS1STANCE (CFDA Number)

16.220 • Scnrkea Tor Trankklng Viciima

I3.METH0D0FFAYMENT

GPRS

AGENCY APPROVAL GRANTEE ACCEPTANCE

16. TYPED NAME AND TTaE OP APPROVING OFFICIAL

Katharine T. Sullivan

PrItKrpal Deputy Aiiitwi Attorney OetMril

18. TYPED NAME AND TITLE OF AUTHORIZED GRANTEE OFFIGAL

Kathleen Carr

Direetor of Adminitcration

17. SIGNATURE OF APPROVING OFFICIAL

^

19. SIGNATURE OP AUTHORIZED RECIPIENT OFFICIAL I9A, DATE

2a ACCOUNTtXO CLASSIFICATION CODES

FISCAL FUND • BUD. DIV.

YEAR CODE ACT. OFC. REG, SUB. POMS AMOUNT

X  B VT -10 00 . 00 7SOOJ8

21. LWrUGinOI

Off FORM *mn (REV. 5-87) PREVIOUS EOtTIONS ARE OBSOLETE.

OJP FORM 400CV2 (REV. 4-K8)
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SPECIAL CONDITIONS

1. Requirements of the award; remedies fornon-cotnpliBnce or for materially false statements

The conditions of this award arc material requirements of the award. Compliance with any assurances or certiftcaiions
submitted by or on behalf of the recipient tha: relate to conduct during the period of performance also is a material
rcquircmcm of this award. By signing and accepting this award on behalf of the recipient, the authorized recipient
ofTlclal accqjts all material requiremetits of the award, end specifically adopts all such assurances or certifications as if
personally executed by the aulhonzed recipient oHicial.

Failure to comply with any one or more of these award requirements ~ whether a condition set out in ftill below, a
condition incorporated by reference below, or an assurance or certJficaUon related to corxluct during the award period -
- may result in the Offjce of Justice Programs rOJP") taking appropriate action with respect to the recipient and the
swBi^. Among other Ihings, the OJP may withhold award funds, disallow costs, or suspend or tarminat: the award.
The U.S. Department of Justice {"DOJ"). including OJP. also may take other legal action as appropriate.

Any mateiinlly false, fictitious', or fraudulent ctatcmcni to the federal government related to this awiud (or conccnlmen*.
or omission of a material fact) may be the subject of criminal prosecution (including under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or 1621,
artd/or 3<.U.S.C. I027I-10273), and also may lead to imposition of civil penalties and administrative remedies for false

'  claims or otherwise (including under 31 U.S.C. 3729-3730 and 3801 -3812).

Shculder.y provision of a requirement of this award be held to be Invalid « unenforceable by iu terms, that provision
liholl first be applied with a limited construction so as to give it the maximum effect permitted by law! Should it be
held, i'l'j'.'rad, that the provision is utterly invalid or -unenforcable, such provision shall be deemed scverable from this
award.

2. Ajqilicability of Pan 200 U:;iform Requirements

The Unifcrm Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements In 2 C.F.R. Part 200, as adopted
and siippkmented by CCJ in 2 C.F.R. Pan 2800 (together, the "Pan 2C0 Uniform Requirements") apply to this FY
2019 owwd from OJP.

The Pan 200 Uniform Requirements were first adopted by DOJ on December 26,2014. If this FY 2019 award
supplements funds previously awarded by OJP under the same award number (e.g., funds awarded during or before
Dccernber 2014), the Part 200 Uniform Requirements apply with respect to all funds under that iward number
(regardless of the award date, and regardless of whether derived from the initial award or a supplcmcrital award) that
are obligated on or after the acceptance date of this FY 2019 award.

For more information and resources on the Part 200 Uniform Requirements as they relate to 0J1'' awards and subawards
("lubgrants"), tee the OJ? website at https://ojp.gov/futiding/Pan200UniformRequiremcnt8.htm.

Record retention and access: Records {^nlncn: to the award i.hat the raciplent (and any subrecipient ('subgrarte'e") at
any tie;) must retain -- typiMlly for a period of 3 ycats from the date of submission of the final expenditure report (SF
425), unless a dilTcrcnt retention period applies -■ and to which the recipient (and any subrecipient ('subgrantct*) at
any tier) ruusi provide access, include performance measurement informatton, in addition to the finaucini records,
supporting documents, statistical records, aal other pertinent records indicated at 2 C.F.R. 200.333.

In the even: that an avrard-rclated question arises from documents or other materials prepared or distributed by OJP
that may appear t6 conflict with, or difTcr in some wty from, the provisions of the Part 200 Uniform Requirements, the
recipient is to contact OJP promptly for clarification.

OJP FORW.4CCOO (P.EV. 4.S8)
vu:



U.S. Department of7ujtice

C ffice of Justice iSograms

3ureau of Jnstl:e Assistance

AWARD CONTINUATION

SHEET

CoopcVrftivc Agreement

PAQ2 J OP 18

PeOJECTNUMBC* :CI9.VT.BX-K024 AWARD DATE 09/29/2019

SPECIAL CONOmONS

3. Compliance with DOJ Grants Financial Guide

Refbrenccs to the DOJ Grants Financial Guide ere to the DOJ Grants Financial Guide as posted on the OJP website
(cuiTently, the "DOJ GrenU Financial Guide" ayiiitblc at httpiy/ojp.gov/financiilguide/DOJ/ihdex.htm), ihcluding any
updated version that may be ported during the period of performance. The recipient agrees to comply with the DOJ
Grants Financial Guide.

4. Rcclassificntion of vuious i'.atutory provisions to a new Title 34 of the United States Code

On Scp".embcr 1,2017, various statutory provisions previously codified elsewhere in the U.S. Code v/cre editorially
reclossified (that is, moved rnd renumbered) to a new Title 34, entitled "Crime Control and Law Enforccmeoi.' The
rcclassi.lc.atlcn encompassed a number of ̂3^2:0.7 provisions pertinent to 0/P awards (that is, OJP grants and
coopcrotive agreements), including many provisions previously codified in Title 42 of the U.S. Code,

Effective £s of September 1,2017, any mfercr.cc in this award document to a st8Cuto7 provision that has been
rtclassincd to the new Title 24 of iJ\e U.S. Cede is be read as 1 reference to that $iatut07 provision as rcclnsslfied to
TUIe 34. This rule of constrvciion'specifically includes rcfcrciKCs set'out in award conditions, references set out in

•  - material incorporated by rcf-yrnce through award conditions, »nd references set out in other award requirements.

• 5. ; Rcquired trai.iing forPoin' ofContactandall Financirl Points of Cor.icct

Both the Point of Contact (POC) and ail Financial Points of Coniact (FPOCs) for this award must have successfully
completed an "OJP financial management end grant adminiistTition training" by 120 days after the date of the
recipient's acceptance of the award.- Successful completion of such a training on or after Janua7 1.2017, will satisiy
this condition.

In the event that either the POC or an FPOC for this nwa.'d changes during the period of performance, the new POC or
FPOC mirrt have succcfsfully completed on "OJP financial management rmd grant administration training" by 120
calendar days after -■ (I) the dotc'ofOJFs opprovoJ of the "Change Grantsc Contact" CAN (in the case of a new
POC). or (2) the date the POC enters information on the new FPOC in CMS (to the case of a new FPOC). Successful
completion of such a training on or after January 1.2017, willsatisfylhiscondition.

A list of OJP trainings that OJP will consider "OJP financial tnansgcmcnt and grant administration ticining" for
purposes of this condition is available at bttp9://ww/.ejp.gov/training/lmts.htm. All trainings tliat saiisfy this conditicn
include a session on grant fraud prevention and detection

The recipient should anticipate that OJP will immcdiaiely withhold ("freeze") award funds if the recipient fails to
comply with this condition. The recipient's failure to comply also may lead OJP to impose,additional appropriate
conditions on this award.

6. Rcquirefnenu related to "dc minlmis" iridircct cost rate '

A rixipieht that is eligible under the Pan 200 Uniform Requirements and other applicable law to use the 'dc minimis" .
' indirect ccst rate described in 2 CF.R. 200.414(f), and that elects to use '.he "de minimis" indirect coist rate, must advise
C.'7 in y/fi'hig of both eligibility and its electiotv and must comply tviih al! associated requirements in the Part 20C
Uniform Requirements. The "dc minimis" rate may ho applied only to modified total direct cosb (MTDC) as defined
by the Pift 200 Unifcrm Requirements.

OJP FOItM «S00a niEV. 448)
ic.
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7. Requifen'.cr.t (0 report pntei'.lially duplicative flinding

Ifthc recipient currently hos other eclivc owartls of fcdcf.-.! funds, or if the recipient receives any other awsrd of federal
funds during the period of perfomance for this aw.ird, the recipient promptly must determine v^cther ftinds from any
of those other fcdcnti awo'ds have been, are bsinj; or ere tc be lucd (in whole or in pan) for one or mere of the
idcnticel coct items for which funds-arc provided un-Jcr iliis award, if so, (he recipient must prornpily notify the DOJ
awardingsgcncy (OJP orCVW, as arproptiaa) in v.ritinj of the potential duplication, and, if so requested by the DOJ
rwanlinj agency, must seek c biidgct-.Tiodificnlion cf chanjC'Of'project-scope grant adjustment notice (CAN) to,
eliminate any inappropriete duplicntion of fiutding.

C. Rcquircnrmu related t? Sj-sicm for y\ward Mtnagsment and Universal Identifier Requirements

The rscipicnt must comply with applicable requirerrcnts regarding the System for Award Management (SA\f)i
currently rccessiblc at hnps;//w\\'w.som.60v/. This includes applicable requirements regarding registration -.vith SAM,
as v/?l1 85 noinlaining '.he corrcncy of information in SAM.

Tlic recipient also mast comply with applicable rcstrtctiors on sabawnids ("subgrants") to first-iicr subrcsipients
.  , (fint-licT 's'ibgrtntccs"), including restrictions on subswards to cntiTies that do not acquire and provide (to the

recipient) the unique'eniily ideniiner required for iSAM regiatratipn.'

-tThcdcuii; ofthcrccrpicnt'aobligatiohs related to SAM and to unique entity identifiers arc posted on the OfP web site
at lit^s://;jp.gov/f\indir.g^xplcra/SAM.htm (Award condition: -System for Award Management (SAM) and Universal
Ideniillcr Rcquiremeiiti), and arc incorporated by reference here,.

-This condition docs not apply to an award to an mdividuni whu received the A\vard as a natural person (i.e., unrelated to
-  -ar.y busir,-.so or non-profit organization that he or she nay-own oropcmtc in his or her name).

Off FORM 4000/2 (REV. -I. JC',
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SPEC//1L CONDVnONS

[Smploymciit eligibility vorificttion for hirir.g ii.ider'.lie award

I .TJi J racipient (end iny fubrecipicnt at arty tier) ir.uct"

A. Ensure thsl, as pa.*! of the hiring process fo; any }'>C9i:ion within the United Slates that is or wli! be funded r<n whole
or in part) with award funds, tlte recipient (or er.y iubricip;5iit) properly verifies the employntcnl eligibility of the'
iiidiviriusi who is being hired, consistent with ll-c provis'ons of 8 U.S.C I324a(a)(l) and (2).

D. Notify all persons associated with the recipicn'. (or any subrccipient) who are or will be involved in activities under
this awr.rJ of both-

(1) tiiis av.'trd requirement for verification of employment eligibility, find

(2) the nssociated provisions in 8 U.S.C. I324r.(a)(l) and (2) that, generally speaking, make it unlawful, in the United
States, *0 vire (or recruit for cmploymcfit) certain aliens.

C. rro\'iJ j ti-aining (to the extent necessary) to those persons required by this.condition to be nolified of (he ev.xrd
\  requirement for employment cllgfoility verification and cftbe associated provisions of 8 U.S.C. 1324s(aXI) Bt:d (2).

- p; As.pan of die irxcrdkceping for the awi-rc (including pursuant to tlte Part 200 Uniform Requirements), maintain
, ;; rccoi^»5 cf sli smployineht sligibility s-ernficaticns pertinent to compliance with this award cbr.dition.in accordance with
.•;i'rcrm «•;* recsnd retention rct;uircmcnsi as well r$ rcccrrts ofal! pertinent notificaiions and trainings. -

■ 2. Monitor'.ng

The recipi'ml's monitoring responsibil'ties include monitoring of subrecipicni compliance with this condition.

3. Allowable costs

To the cxtcn: that such costs are not reimbursed under any otha' federal program, award funds may be cbligatrxj for the
reuonab'.e,- necessary, end ailocsble costs (if eny) of actions designed to ensure compliance with this condition.

4. Rules ofccnstnxiicn .

A. Staff involved in the hiring proceit

for purposes of this condition, persons "who nre or will be involved in ectiviiies under this award" specifically includes
(without limitation) any 8:u:l all recipient (or any subrccipient] ofTiciald or other staff who are or will b: involved in the
hiring process with respect to a position that 'S;Or will be fbnded (in whole or in part) with award fbnds.

B. Employment eligibility confirmation wi'Ji E-Verify

For purposes of satisfying the requirement of this condition regarding verification of employment eligibilify. the
recipient (or any siibreclpient) may choose to participate in, and use, E-Vcrify (www.e-vcrify.gov). provided sn •
bppropriit:c person autliorized to act on bchalf oftha recipient (or subrccipient) uses E-Venfy (and follows the proper
2-Vcrify procedures, including in the event of a "Tentarive Nonconfirmation" or a "Final Honconflfmation") to
confirm emploj'mcnt eligibility for each hiringforr. position in the United States that is or will be ftinded (in whole or'
in port) with award, fbnds.

C. "United States" specifically insludes the Cietrict of Columbia, Puerto Rico, Guam, the Virgin Islands of the United
States, ar-J the Commonwealth of the Northern frlariar.a Ithends.

D. Nothing in this condition shell be understood tn authori::t or require any recipient, any subrccipient at any tier, or

OJP FOR W ioooa (KEV. 4.01)
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•ny person or other entity, to vioUte any federal tew, incivding rjiy appiicublc civil rights or nondiscnmination law.

E. Nctirhi.^, this condition, tnciudir.g in pora^Topli 4.O., thsll be understood to relieve any recipient, any subrcciplent
at any lisr, or any person or other entity,' of any obligation otherwise iir.{>osed by law, including 8 U.S.C. I324b(sXI)
and (i).

' Qitestions about E-Vcrify should.be directed to DHS. For njjrc information about £•Verify" visit the E-Vcrify
wr.bsite(>.n;Js://www.e-vcriry.gov/) or email E-Vcri^ rt E-Vcrify@dh5.g0v. E-Verify employer agcntj can email E-
Verify at ii-"'/erif/S.n.ployeTA}{cnt@dhs.gov.

' Oucstion.'; about iho meaning cr scope of this condition shottld be directed to OJP. before award acceptance.

10. Rcquiremoni to ref-on aoi! or imminent breach of personally identifiable infonnation (PI))

T)tc rccipiai*. (and any "cbrecipiciit" at any tier) must havo'wiittcn proccduix* in place to respond in the event of an
iwraal.o/imminent "breicb" (0MB M-17-12) iv it (or a snbrccipieni) •• (I) creates, collects, uses, processes, stores,

• mam-R'n'r disscminait;*, dlsclcocs, ordisposcj or"pcr>ORf.l'y'dentificbic information (PII)" (2 CFR 200.79) witliin the
>• scope of f.ri 0J7 grant-.'ur.ded program or acnvity. or.(2) uses cr opci'atci a ."Fcdcml infonnatibn system" (0M3

•; ' wVa/V4 Circuit- /.r 130). T.u recipient's breach procedures must include a rcquirsrnent to report' octual.nr Imminent breach of
toan ̂ .^Progfam ?.!cn:ger no la'xr tiran 24 hours ef):! an occurrcnrc of an actual breach, or iJ>c detection of an

> 0-Jitiniinch'.'ireach. " f '

.if.! I. . AD subav/Bfds ("rab^fants"- .must have spcc-i.'ic federal auihorizatior .

♦  The recipient, end any subreripient ("subgrantec") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements for
authoHzafion of.ajiy subaward. .ITiia condition applies to egreemenis iltat -• for purposes of federal grants
adminisCrctive requirements ~ OJP considers c "subawani" (and therefore does not consider a procurement
"cortraci").

i2.

Tne details of the requircr.ienl for authorization of any subawsrd are posted on the OJP web site at
https.'//ojp.'gov/funding/E*p!orc/£HbawardAu!horizz:ion.h*.m (Award condition; All subawards ("subgraiits") must haNts
cpeciHc f'ldemi authoriraticn), and are inccrporated by reference here.

Spscid: post-award approval required to usea nor.competitive approach in any procurement contract that would
exceed t^.uO.CKX)

. I1ic recipicTtt, and any subrccipicnt ("subgrantec") m cny tier, must comply with all applicable requirements to obtain
specifl: artvwee apprci.'al to.usc f rroncompetitrre approach in any procurement contreci that would exceed the .
SiirpHf:: i Anqiiisition tlireshold (currently, 5250.000). Thi.-: condition applies to agreemnnis thai - for purpcsf# of
federal grcnts «drmnistTa*.ivc requirements - OJP consider:« procurement "contract" (and therefore does not consider
a subawa.'d).

The details'of the requircrjent for advance approval to use a noncompetiiive approach in a procurement contraol under
an OJP c'.v^ arc posted or. the OJP web :it: at httpsy/oju.gov/fiindinj/'Rxplore/NcncompctitiveProcurcmcnt.htra
(Awcrd condition: Spccifrc'posiJrjvard approval required to vse'a noncompetitivc approach in t procureiricnt contract
(ir'conmtci would excsed $250,000)), and are incorpdrr.tcd byrcfcrencc here.'

SOL
OJP FOR>5 aoruSB {R2V, 4CJ)
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SPECIAL COmmONS .

Unrejscr.ijlc rcstricticiis on competition undcf the award; asnociaticn with federal govemrncni

SCOPE. T.ii: condition applies with respect'to eny procurctr.eni of pi-opcrty or services that is funded (in whole or in
pa.t) by tl'.it award, whetlie: by the recipient or by any s'ubrccipi-mt at any tier, and regardless ofthe dollar amount of
the purc'.iaac or tcquisin'on, the method of procuitmcrii, or the nature of any legal instnimcnt used. The previsions of
this condition must be emong those included in any subaward (at any tier).'

I. No discrimination, in prociuement transactions, against associates of the federal government

Consistent with the (001) Pan 200 Uniform Rcooirements •• including as set out at 2 C.F.R. 2C0.300 (rrquirirg
ii-.vards to He ''manage[d] and administer!ed] in a manner so as to ensure that Federal funding is espwded and
associated programs are implemented in full accordance with U.S. statutory and public policy requirements") and.
200.319(() (generally requiring "Ib]11 procurerr.cnt tnunsnciions [to] be conducted in e manner providing .'Ul and open
compciiticr.i" and foibidding practices "restrictive of cotrirKtition," auch as "[p]tacing unreasonable requirements on
firms in order for them to qualify to do business" and taking "[ajny arbitrary action in the procurement process") -- no
recipient ('. r subrecipient. ci any tier) may (m any prccureinent transaction) discriminate against any pe.*son or entity on
the basis i:? rucli person or entity's status as an 'associate of the federal government" (or on tlie basis of such person or

. cn*Jty"g,fUix*3 as t parent, affiliate, or subsidiary of cuch an associate), except as expressly set out in 2 C.F.R.'
01,M ipccifrcilly authorized by USDCJ. '

•  -*v.r-- . * . • -t
:'i:Mcr.ito:;n§

'fhe r.xipi.mt'i monitoring responsibilities include rTronilcring of subrecipicnt compliance with this condition,

'3. Allowable costs

To Ac cxtcf.l that such costs arc not reimbursed under any.othcr federal program, award funds trwy be obligated for the
rcascnablpi ncccnary, and allocabie costs (if r.ny) of actions designed to ensure compliance with this condition.

4. Rules 0.*construction

A. The tern "associate of Ac federal government" mctns any pason or entity er.gngcd or cmnloycd (in the past or ci
present) ty or on behalf of the federal governmcn: - as an employee, contractor or subcontractor (at any tier), grant
rccipien: or -$ubrtcipicpt (ai any tier), agent, orothcinviic •• in vndcrtaking any work, project, or-aciivity for or on
tchairof.(cr in providing goods or services to or on.bcl a'f cf) the federal government, and includes any applicant for
such employment or crgagcmeni, and any perron or emit;.'committed by legal instrument to undertake any such wot'.<,
project, c: .-rctivity (cr to provide such goods cr service,',) in futnrc,

D. Nothing in this condition shall be understood to authorize or require cry recipient, any subrecipicnt at any tier, or
atiy pereo? cr other cnhty, to violate any fedenil iaw, incli fir.g nr.y rpplicnbie civil rights or nondiscrirrjnatior. law.

OJP FO!U.I 40tXV2 (?EV. 4.CI)
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14. Requirements pertaining to prohibited conduct related to trafHching in persons (including reporting requirements and
0/P authcity to terminate award)

Tlie rscipirmt, and any subrecipient fsubgrantee'yBt any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements (including
requirements to report anegaiiom) pertaining to prohibited conduct related to the tntfTicking of persons, whether on tlic
part of recipients, subrecipients ('subgrantce:'), or individuals defined (for pu.-poscs of this condition) as "employees"
of the recipient or of any subrecipient. •

The details .efthe recipient's obligations rebied to prohibited conduct rclcted to trafficlcmg in persons are posted on the
,. OJP web 3'tt at https://cjp.gcv/ftinding/ExplorefProhibite'lConducl-Trefncl(in£.htin (Award condition: Prohibited

conduct by recipients and subrecipients related to trafTicki.tg in person: (including reporting requirements and OJP
authority: j terminate award)), and are incorpcnied by reference here.

15. Determination of suitability to interact with pcrlicipa'-ing minors

OCJ..(pr If; the appltca'.ton for nny subai
- '"^^'ass'jciatc^ frde:^ statute — that a purpo

or a svbrtcinlcr.t at any tk

SCOrE. Ttis condition applies to this award if it is lndic?.tcd - in the applicado.n for the award (as approved by
DCJXpr if; the application for any subaward.et any tier), the OOJ-ftindirg announcement (solicitation), or an

I purpose of some cr ill o.' tlic ectivdtina to be carried out under die awtrd (whcUier by
' tier) is to benefit a set ofindiviJuals under 16 years cf age.

rrciritrnv, and any subrecipient rt any tier, 7.iust ma-';-, dcterminhtions oFsuitability before certain individufls may
' y^^iht«.'»ct"*.;-:di participaSng .Tjinorr.- This iecuirement f,p!>iicsTegardJe« cf t n individual's cmplojTncni status.

tne detai; cf tills rcquirerarr.t are posted on the OJ? v/cfc site at https://o.i?.gov/funding/nspiorc/lnteTB:l'.Vtmai,hrm
(Awr.rd 'ccnclittoh: nctcrmiuilion ofsultabili.'/ rtquiieo, in (tdva-ncc, for certain individuals who my interact with
participatbg minors), and are Incerporated by reference here.

16. Compliance with Bpplicabi: rules regarding approval, plennirg, and reporting of conferences, ircctings. trainirgs, end
^othef'cvents " " ' "

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgranicc") at a-ny tier, must comply ̂^ith all applicable laws, regularions.
policies, and official DOJ guidance (including specific cost limits, prior approval and reporting requirements, where
applicablf.) governing the use of federal funds for expenses related to conferences (as that term is defined by DOJ),
including Ihe provision of food and/or bevera^ at such conferences, and costs of attendance at cuch confidences.

Inforinati'cn on the pertinent DOJ definition of conferences and the rules applicable to this award appears in the DOJ-
Grar.s Fiitsnciol Guide (currently, as section 3.10 of "Postaward Requirements" in the "DOJ Grants Financial Guide").

17. Requirement for data on performance and cffcr-tivcncss under the award-

3310 rceipicr.t must collect and maintain dau thti measure the performance and effectiveness of work under this as^trd.
Tne deu.-.n'lsl be provided to OJT in the manner (inducing within the rimcframes) specified by OJP in the program
sclicitaiicn cr other applicable written guidance. Dnia collection supports compliance with the Covemmcni
Perfcrmancc and Renlta Ad (GPR.A) and the GPR.'V Modemlzaiion Act of 2010, and other applicable laws.

18. OX? Training Guiding PTi.ncipics

Any training or training materials that the fecipicri •• or any subiecipicr.t ("subgrantec") at any tier ~ develops or
delivers with OJP award ftinds miKt adhere to the CJP Training Ouiding Principles for Grnntccs and Subgrantces,
available.j.t https;//ojp.gov/fundi:ig/lmplemc.nlTrainingPrincipl5sForOren:ee:*SubgTantres.Iiim.

VjC
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>9. Effect of fjilure to address audit issues " - >

The recipient understands and cgrees that the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) may wiihliold
award or may impose ether related rcqu'rcmenU, if (as determined by the DOJ awarding agency) the recipient
dpcs not bsiisfaciorily and promptly address outstanding issues from audits required by the Pan 200 Uniform
Requirements (or by the terms of Otis award), or other outstanding issues that arise in connection with audits,
investigations. Of reviews cf DOJ awards.

20. Potertial imposition of addittonal requirements

The recipient agrees to comply with any additional reouircments that mry be imposed by the DOJ awarding egcncy
(0/P or C'/\V, as appropriate) during the period of perfonnancc for'.hw award, if the recipient is desipated ac "hi^*
>i$lc" for purposes of the DCJiiigh-risk grantce lisi.

21. Cotnplianec with DOJ reguljtions peruining to civi' righic and nondiscrimination • 28 C.F.R. Part 42

.. The q^pient, and any subrecipicnt fsubgrantee') at er.y ::er, must comply with all applicable rtiquiremcn',s of 28
.C.F.H?^n42,8pwificBl!y including any applicable requirements In Sibpart E of 28 C.F.R. Parl"42 thtt rtlfttc to an

•' equalicmp'.oNTOcnt oppofturiity program.
• * • *

..22._. •^C^m^snee v/ith DOI rcgulctlons pcrtoining to civil rights and nondiscriminotion • 28 C.F.R. Part 54

The reciititht, and a.ny subrocipicni ("subgrantec") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements of 28
C.F.R:';Pari 54, which relates to nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in certain "education programs.'

23. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination • 28 C.F.R. pRri 38

.The recipient, and any.subreclpienc ("subgrantcc") at a.ny.t{er, must comply, with all applicable requirements of 28 .
C.F.R. Patt 3$ (as may be applicable from time to time), specifically including any applicable requirements regarding
written notice to program benericiaries and prospective program berteficiaries..

Currently, among.oiher things, 28 C.F.R. Part 38 includes rules that prohibit specific forms of discrimination on the
buis of rc'igion, a religious belief, a refusal to hold.a religions belief, or refusal to attend or participate in a reiigiotts
pmcUce.' ?art 33, currently, also sets out rules and rcqulremcms that pertain to recipient and siibrecipiem
C'subgrantee") organizations that engage in or conduct explicitly reHgious activities, as well as rules en<i rtquircments
that petLt^t to recipients and subrecipicnts titat are faith-bcscd or religious organizations.

The text of 28 C.F.R. Part 38 is available via the E'ccrrrnic Code of Federal Regulations (cuirently accessible at
https:/AvTw.ccfT.gov/cgi-bin/ECFR?page^rowsc), by browsing lo T'l'c 28-Judicial Administration. Cnaptcr 1, Part
3S..«.ndft:'c-CFR.'currtnt" data.'

YJL
OJP FORM /-OOfW (RBV, e-M)



U.S. Departmsnt of Justice

Of."ice of Justice Progrtnv; -

Cureau of Justice /Vcsistance

av^ard continuation

SHEET "

Cooperative Agreement

PAOE 10 OF IS

PROreCT NtJMBDR, ZPir-VT-BX-KOZ* AWARD DATE O5/29/2019'

SPECIAL CONDITIONS

24. Restrictionc c-n "lobbj'ing"

in gencT«!, us d matter of Tedei*! law, federal funds ftwardcJ Ly OJP tray not be used by ilie recipient, or any
cubreripicr.t ("subgrantec") tt any tier, either directly cr indirectly, to support or oppose the enactment, repeal,
modification, or tdoplion of rjty law, regulation, erf oiicy, 01 nny level of govemmcnL See IBU.S.C. 1913. (There
may be exceptions if an applicable ft^eral scamt; specifically aiulhonzcs certain activities that otherwise \yculd be
barred by hw.)

Ancihcr fjocml/law jtsncrol'y prcWbits federal fimds awarded by OJP Don being used by the recipient, or any ,
subrecipieni it any tior, to pay any person to influence (or rttompt to influence) a federal BEcncy, a Member of
Congrcoj. o: Congress (or an offitial or employee of any of Uicm) with respsct to the awarding of a fikJcnl grant or
coopcnitiv-: agreement, subgrant, contract, subcontract, or loan, or with respect to actions such as renewing, extending,
or mc Jifying any sucJi awnnt. S:e3l U.S.C. I3S2. Certain exceptions to this law apply, including an exception that
applies.to Indian tribes and tribal organizations.

Should any question arise as to whether a particular use of fcdcal ftinds by a recipient (or subrccipicnt) would or might
fall within the scope of these prohibitions, the ircipient is to contact OJP for guidance, and may not proceed without the

•...exprcsJprior written approval ofOJP.

•■'25. "CoinpliarM v. i'jv general appropriaiiohSTlaw rMtrictions on the use of federal funds (FY 2019)

/ri"^o~r;ixipii:,;t, and iany'iiibrccipicnt ('subgrarice*) at any litr.-.must comply.with all applicable restrictions onihc use of
•Ttdsrnl funds set oiit in federal appropriations statutes. Pertinent rcsiricions, including from various "general

provisions" in the-ConsoHdated Appropriations Act, 2019, are set out at
,  ■'H;tps://ojp.gcv/funding/'£xFior6TS'l9Appropri8tionsr.c.;trictions.hL":j, and arc incorporated by rxTcrence here.

• Should a question arise as to whwhcr a particular use of federal funds by a recipient (or e subrecipieni) would or might
fall within tbo scope of an appropriations-law rcjtriciion, the recipient is to contact OJP for guidance, and may not
pvvcssd.v.'ithoot.ilic.c.xprest.prior.wrincn.approvBl of.OJP.,' : __

TS. Rspcrting fiitntial f.-.iud. 'vrjtc, and abuse, and similar riisconduct

The iccipi mt and any ribttcipiena ("subgrantccs") must p.'cniptly refer to the DOJ OlTice ofihe Inspector General
(010) any credible evidence that s principal, employee, agcrii, subrecioier.t, contractor, subcontractcr. or other person
has, in connection vrith funds under this award •• (I) submitted a claim that violates the False Claims Act; or (2)
comminod a criminat or civlV violation of laws pertaining to fraud, confiict of interest, bribery, gratuity, or 'simdar
inisconducii

Potential f.aud, waste, abuse, or misconduct involving or relating to fbnds under this award sho'jld be reported to the
010 hy~(I I online submission accessible via tiie 010 wr-tpagc at hitpsI//oi6.ju3ticc.60y/hotlin</conUet-granui.htm
(£elect'"Submii Report Online"); (2) mall directed to: Office of the l.nsnectcr General, U.S. Department of Justice,
Investigations Diviaion. 1425 New York Avcitjc, N.W. Suite 7100, Waihington, DC 20330; and/or (3) by facsimile
directed to iliebOJCIGPra-jd Detection Office (Attn: OranteeReporling)at(202)616-988] (fix).

Additional information is available from the DOJ 010 website at'littps://oig.justice.gov/hotline.

tJC
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27. Restrictions end cotificsu'cns regsrding noti-diiiclcsure agreements and related matters

No recipient or subrecipieni ("subgraniee") under this award, or entity that receives a procurement contract or
iubco:itr«ci with any Funds under ihic awaM. may re(;uire any employee or contractor to sign en internal confidentiality
Bgresmeni or statement thai prohibits or otherwise rairicts, or purports to prohibit or restrict, the reporting (In
accordance with law) of waste, fraud, or abuse to an investigative or law enforcement representative of a federal
department or agency authorized to receive such infonnadon.

The foregoing is not intended, and shell not be understood by the agency making this award, to contravene
requirements applicable to Sundard Form 312 (which relates to classified information), Form 4414 (which relates to
sensitive companmcntcd informadon), or any other form issued by n federal department or agency governing the
nondisclosure of classified information.

1. tn accepting this award, ih: recipient"

a. rcprcse;;ts that it neither requires nor has reqnirsd internal confidentiality agreements or statements from employees
or contrccr.ars that currently prohibit or otherkwise currcndy restrict (or p-urport to prohibit or restrict) employees or

• '..X^contraciora fiorr. reporting waste, fraud, or abuse a.s described above; and

ccnirier tjtot, if it Icarhacr isnoiified that it is or hcs been requiring its employees or contractors to execute
' * ' '^agrcemchts uV ftztements ikct prohibit or oihervisc restrict (or purpoh to prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud,

pb'.ise.as riescrtbed above, it will immediately stop any furJicr ctligaiions of award funds, will provide prompt
xf^^vriiicn hotiftcatton to the t'ederal agency making this award, and will resun^ (orpermit resumption oO such
Atcbllgations only ifexpressly authorized to do so by that agency.

. <7 .

2. If the recipient docs or is authorized under this award to make subuwards ("subgranis"), procurement contracts, or
boih-

a. it represents that"

(1) it has determined that no other entity that the recipient's application proposes may or will receive award funds
(whether through a subaward Csubgrani"), procurement contract, or subcontract urtder a procurement contract) either
requires p.* has required intemal confidentiality agreements or statements from employees or contraccon that currently
prohibit or otherwise currently restrict (or purport to prohibit cr restrict) employees or contractora from reporting waste,
fraud, or abuse as described above; and

(2) it ha: made appropriate inquiry! or otherwise has on adequate factual basis, to support this representation; and

b. it certi-Tics that, if it leams or is notified (hat any subrccipient, contractor, or subcontractor entity that receives funds
under this award is or has been requiring its employees or contractors to execute agreements or statements that' prohibit
or cUierwise restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict), rcp>')nittg of v/astc, fraud, or abuse as described above, it will
inuTiMiial'ily .^lop any further obligations of av.-ard funds to or by that entity, will provide prompt written notification to
ilie federa/e'gency mahirig this a-ward, and will rcritme (or permit resumption oO such obligations only if expressly
nu'.hcrizc: tc do .v> by dint agency.

Oif FORM 40000 (REV. 4>f :)
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28. Compltarxc with 4! U.5.C. 4712 (including prohibWcns on rcpniol; notice to employees)

The recipient (%nd any suhrsdipitni &t any tier) must comply with, and is subject id, all applicable provisions of 4!
U.S.C. 4712, including sll applicable provisions that prohibit, under apcciried circumstances, diKriminalion ogatnst an
employee as rcprial for ilie employee's disclosure of info7tr.aiion ixlated to gross mismanagcmcrit of a federal grant, c
gross waste of federal l\irdsi an abuse ofauthority relating to a federal grant, a substantial and specific dangerio public
health or 'scfety, or a violation of Uw. rule, or regulation related to a federal grant.

The irctpittu a'.$o murt inform its employees, in writing (end in the predominant native language of the workforce), of
employee rights and remedies under 41 U.S.C. 4712.

Should a cucstion arise as 10 the applicability of the provisions of 41 U.S.C. 4712 to this award, the recipient is to
contact the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriat:) for guidance..

29. Encouragement of policies to ban text messaging while driving

Pursuant to Executive Order 13313, -Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While Driving," 74 Fed. Reg,
-•.■^51225 (October I, 2009), DOJ encourages recipients and subrccrpients ("subgrantees") to adopt and enforce policies
"f'banning employees from text messaging while driving «.ny vehicle dining the course of performing work funded by this
.T'oward. and la establish wdr>TJlacc safety policies and canduct education, awareness, and other outreach to decrease
•^crashes csjiscd by distracted drivers.

30. ^Requirement to disclose whether recipient is designated "high risk" by a federal grant-making agency oulside of DOJ
.  ""^Ifthe recipient is designated "high risk" by a federal grant-making agency outside of DOJ, cuiTcntly or at any lime

during tlic course of the period of performance under this award, the recipient mi;st disclose that fact and certain related
' informaiicr. to OJP by email at OJP.CdmplianceReportingQojp.usdoj.goy. For purposes of this disclosuit, high risk
includes shy status under which o federal awarding agency provides additional oversight due to the recipient's past
pcrforminccror olhcr rrogrimmallc br financiai concems with the rccipicot.-Tke rcclpicnt'i disclosure must include -
th: followhig: I. The federal awarding agency that currently designates the rrcipient high risk, 2. The date the recipient
was designated high risk. 3. Thchj(d>-risk point of contact at tbat fcdeTal 3\yarding agency (name, phone number, and
email additss), srtd 4. The reasons for the h:g!i-risk I'aws. as set out by the federal awarding agency.

31. AppUcanta mu.« certify that Limited English Proficiency persorii have meaningful access to the services under this
program(r). National qrigiti di.scrimination includes discrimination on the bssis of limited English proficiency (LEP).
To ensure compliance with Title Vl and the Safe Streets Act. recipients art required to take reasonable steps to ensure
that LEP pcnons have meaningful access to their programs. Meaningful access may enuil providing language
auistancc.scryicei, including onil and written trar.slation when necessary. The U.S. Departmmt of Justice hu issued
guidance far grantees io help them comply witb. Title yi rcquirsments. The gui^nce d^umeoi can be accessed on the
Intcrhel at •A'wv/,lep.gov.

32. Required attendance at BJA-sponsored events

The recipient (and its subrccipienis at any tier) must participate in BJA-sponsored training cvcnt-t, technical assistance
events, or conferences held by BJA or its designeea. upon BiA'i request.

0J> FORM 40000 4:7}
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33. The recipient Bgrees to submit to BM for review and approvol wy curricuia, nining materials, proposed piiblicaticns,
reports, or any other written rriaterials that will be published,'including wcb-bits^ materials and web site corttent,
through.ftirxli from this gnnl at least thirty (30) working days prior to the urgcted disscminaiioo date. Any written,
visual, or uudio publications, with the exception of press releases, whether published at the grantee's or government's
expense, shall contain the following statements: "This project was support^ by Grant No. 20I9-VT-BX-K024
awarded by the Bureau of Justice Assistance. The Bureau of Justice Assistance is a component of the Department of
Justice's OfUcc of Justice Programs, which also includes the Bureau of Justice Statistics, the Notional Institute of
Jtisticc, the OlTice of Juvenile Justice and Delittquency Prevention, the Office for Victims of Crime, end the SMART

• Office. Points ofview or opinions in this document are those of the outhorend do not necessarily represent the official
posidor. or policies of the U.S. Department of Justice." The current edition of the DOJ Grants Financial Guide provides
giiida.ncc on allowable printing and publication activities-

All prognim authority and responsibility inherent in the Federal sie>vnrd$hip role shall remain with the Bureau of
Justice Aitistencc (BJA). BJ.A will work in conjunction v/iih the recipient to routinely review end refine the work plan
80 that the program's goals and objectives can be effectively accomplished. BJA will monitor the project on a
continual basis by mair.taining ongoing contact with the xcipieoi and will provide input to the program's diteclion, inconsul^ia^'.vilh the recipient, as needed.
'Any V/cb"s:l6 iJial is funded in whole or in pan under this award must incliklc the following statement on the home
-7Jge.,l'cn'i'!-.r.toi or entry pages (5,c., pages (exclusive of documents) whose primary purpose is to navigate the uacr to

';;l«ntcriof^pVije.it), and on'or.y pages from which a visitor may access or use r. Wcb-bascd service, including any pages
.-'that provide results cr outputs from the service:

• "This VVcb site is fundctJ [insert "in part," if applicable) through a grant from the [insert name of OJP cbmponcntl.
Officc^rj'iSlice Programs, U.S. Oepartmcni of Justice. Neither the U.S. Department of Justice nor any ofits
componenJa.ppeiBte, control, are responsible for, or necessarily endorse, this Web site (including, without limitation, its
content,'tuchnical infrastructure, and policies, and any services or tools provided)."

The fill! text of the foregoing siatcmcnt-must be clearly visible on the home page. On other pagcs. thc statement may —
be included through a link, entitled "Notice of Federal Funding and Federal Disclaimer," to the full text of the
siaicment.

36. The recipient agrees to cooperate with any assessments, nctional evaluation efforts, or information or data collection
requests, including, but not limited to, the provision of any information required for the assessment or cval'jalion of any
activilies within this project.

37. Justification of consultant rate

Approval cf tliis award docs not indicate approval of ony consultant rate in excess of S650 per day. A detailed
• f justification must be submitted to and approved by the OJP program office prior to obligation or expenditure of such
1 ft-nds.

38. With respect to this award, federal funds may.not be used to pay cash compensation (salary plus bonuses) 10 any
employee of the awx'd recipient at a rate that c.xceeds 110% of the maximum annual salary payable 10 a member of the
federal gcvemmcnl's Senior Executive Service (SES) at ar agency witlt a Certified SES Performance Appraisal System
for that year. (An award recipient may compensate an employee at a higlier rale, provided the amount in excess of this
eompensatinn limitadon is paid with non-federal funds.)

This :ifrit.Micn.on corhpensttion rates allowtble under iJtis a-.vard rary bo waived on an individual .basis at ilic
discretion oftheOJ? cfficial indicated in the program announcement under v/hich.this award is made.

Oh- FORM 4000rt (IIEV.I-JS)
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39. The recipient agrees that-it will submit quarterly financial status repons to OJP on-line (at httpa://grants.ojp.usdoj.gov)
using the S? 425 Pedcial Financial Report form (available for viewing at https:/Avww.gsa.gov/ronns-librBr)r/federal-
financial-report), not later than 30 days after the end of each calendar quarter. The final report shall be submitted not
later than 50 days following the end of the award period. ' • -

40. The reclpieht shall submit ccmbnnusi progress ruporis. Progress reports shall be submitted within 30 days after the end
of the reporringpcriods, which are June 30 and December 31, for the life of the award. These reports will be submitted
to the Onice of Justice Programs, on-line through the Internet ii hitps://granB.ojp.i:sdcj.gov/.

OJP P0RJ4 4000/3 (REV. 4.S3}
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41. Within 45 calendar days after the end of any conference, meeting, retreat, seminar, symposium, training activity, or
similar event funded under this award, and the total cost of which exceeds S2C,000 in award fttnds, the recipient must
provide the program manager with the following information ond itemized costs:

1) name of event;

2) event dates;

3) location of event;

4) number of federal attendees;

5) number of non-fedcntl attendees;

6) costs of event space, including rooms for break-out sessions;

7) costs of audio visual services;

8) Other.equipnrwnt costs (e.g., computer fees, telephone fees);

i?) costs of printing and distiibuiion;
•  . • ;v

.10) costs of meals provided during the event;
r

'11) costs of refreshments provided during the event;

.. 12) costs of event planner;

13) costs of event racilitoujrs; and • _

14) any o'lhcT cosu associated with the event.

The recipient mi^ also itemize and report any of the following attendee (including participants, presenters, speakers)
costs that are paid or reimbursed with cooperative agreement ftinds:

1) meals and incidemai.expenscs (M&IE porrion ofper diem);

2) lodging:

3) transportation to/from event location (e.g., cotnmon carrier, Privately Owned Vehicle (POV)); and,

* 4) local tranrporution (e.g., rental car, POV) at event location.

Note that if wy item b paid for with registration fees, or any other non-award funding, then tliat portion of the expense
does not need to be reported.

Further instructions regarding the submission of this data, and how to determine costs, arc available in the OJP
Financial Guide Conference Cost Chapter.

OJ? FORM 4C00/2 (RJTV. 4-5S)
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SPECIAL COHpmONS

42. FFATA reporting: Subawards and executive compensation

The rccipiait must comply with applicable requirements to report first-tier subawards ("subgrants") of J25,000 or
mere and, in certain circumstances, to report the names and total compensation of the five most highly compensated
executives of the recipicttl and first-tier subrecipients (first-tier "subgrentees") of aword funds. The details of recipient
obligations, which derive from the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006 (FFATA), are por-cd
on the OJP web site at https://oJp.gov/f\inding/£xplore/FF.4TA.hCTn (Award condition: Reporting Subawards and
Executive Compensation), and are incorporated by reference here.

This condition, including its reporting requirement, does not apply to- (I) an award of less thanS2S.000, cr (2) an
cward mce? to an individual who received the award as n natural person (i.e., unrelated to any business or non-profit
crganiiation that he or she may own or operate in his or her neme).

43. Cooperating with OJP Monitoring

The rccipir nt agrees to cooperate with OJP monitoring of this award pursuant to OJP*! guidelines, protocols, and
procedures, and to cooperate with OJP (including the grant iruinager for this award and the Ofiice of Chief Financial

' . " Officcr-<0CFO)) requests related to such monitoring, including requests related to, desk reviews and/or site visits. The

may
re.«ult in'act'ons that affect the lecipient's DOJ awards, including, but.not limited to: wjthholdings and/or other
restrictions on the recipient's access to award funds: referral to the DOJ OlO for audit review; designation of the
recipicRt'as a DOJ High Risk grantee; or termination of ah award(s).

44. The recipient agrees to track and repoil to BJA on its training and tcchnicol assistance activities and deliverables
progress using the guidance and format provided by BJA. '

45. The awa'rd recipienfagrccs to participate in a data collection process measuring program' outputs and outcomes. The
data elemmts for this process will be outlined by tlie Office of Justice Programs.

46. Confidentialiiyofdsta

The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must comply with all confidentiality requirements of 34 U.S.C. 10231
and 28 C.F.R. Pan 22 (hat are applicable to collection, use, and revelation of data or inibrmation. The recipient further
agrees, as a condition of award approval, to submit a Privacy Certificate (hat is in accord with requiremeni.s of 28
C.F.R. Pen 22 and, in particular. 28 C.F.R. 22.23.

\LC
OJF fORM 4000/2 (REV. 4-8S)-
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SPECIAL CONDIT/ONS

47. Copyright; Duta righlj

The rccipiciV. ncknowtedgfts thai OJP reserves a royalty-free, non-exclusive, and irrevocable license to reproduce,
publish, or otherwise use, sn-J authorixe others to use (in whole or in pert, including in connection with derivative
works), for Federal purposes: (I) any work subject to copyright developed under on award or subawerd (at any tier);
and (2) any rights of copyright to which a recipient or subrecipient (at any tier) ptimhases ownenhip with Federal
support. •, •

The recipient acknowledges that OJP has the right to (I) obtain, reproduce, publish, or otherwise use the data :nst
produced under any such award or subaward; and (2) authorize others to receive, reproduce, publish, or otherwise tise
such data for Federal purposes. 'Data* includes data as defined in Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR) provision
52.227-14 (Rights in Data • General).

It is the resppnsibility of the recipient (and of each subrecipient (at any tier), if applicable) to ensure that the provisions
of this condition are included in any subaward (at any tier) under this award.

The recipient has the responsibility to obtain from subrcciplents, contractors, and subcontrsclon (if any) all rights and
data necessary to fulfill the recipient's obligations to the Government under this award. If a proposed subrecipient,

. contractor, or subcontractor refues to accept terms afTording the Government such rights; the recipient shall promptly
bring's'uch refusal to the attention of the OJP program manager for the award and not proceed with the agreement in

• •qucstibn'.without furthsr outhoriiatiori from the OJP program office.
?*.

4S. Protcctib.n ofhuman research subjects
ru'

The rerlpient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must comply with the requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 46 and all OJP
.  policies pnd procedures mgsrriing the protection ofhuman research subjects, including obtainmcni ofIn$tirutioi;al

Reviciv Board approval, if appropriate, and subject informed consent.

-49.~Rccipicnt integrity and pcrfom-iancc maticrsr-Rcquircmcnt to report inforriiBtion on certain civil, criminal, and
admir.istraiiys proceedings to SAM and FAPIIS

The recipient must comply witli any and all applicable requirements regarding reporting of infonnation on civil,
criminal, and admimstnttivc proce^ings connected with (or connected to the performance of) either this OJP award or
any other grant, eoopeiatiye igKement, or procurement contract from the federal government. Under certain
ciTCumstancci, recipients of OJP twords are required to report iiiformalion about such proceedings, through the federal
System for Award Management (known as "SAM"), to the designated federal integrity and performance system
(currently, "FAPIIS").

The deltilj of rcctpicni obligations regarding the required reporting (and updating) of information on certain civil,
criminal, and administrative proceeding to the federal designated integrity and performance system (cuTTcnily,

i V "FAPIIS") within SAM are posted on the OJP web si:c at httpc"7/ojp.gov/f^ndingfFAPnS.htm (Award condition:
• ^ Recipient Integrity and Performance Matters, including Recipient Reporting to FAPIIS), and are incorpcreted by

reference here.

SO. Verification and updating of recipient contact informaiion

The recipient must verify its Point of Contact(P.6C), Financial Point of Conmct (FPOC), and Authorized
Rqjresentative contact information in CMS, including telephone number and e-mail address. If any information is
incorrect or has changed, a Grant Adjustmcm Notice (GA)^ must be submitted via the Grants Manigcmcni System
(GhiS) to document changes.

OJP FORM <0W2 (ItEV. 4-U<)
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SPECIAL CONOmom

51. Withholding of funds: Disclosure ofpcnding applications

The recipient may not obligate, expend, or draw down any award funds until; (I) it has provided to the paul nxanagcr
for this OJ? award either an "applicant disclosure ofpcnding applications" for federal fbnding or a specific affirmative
statement that no such pending applications (v/hcthcr direct or indirect) exist, in accordance with the decailcd
inttniciions in the program solicitation, (2) OJP has completed its review of the mformation provided and of any
supplcmer.tT) mformation It may request, (3) the recipient has made any adjustments to the award that OJP may require
to prevent or eliminate any inappropriate duplication of funding (e.g., budget modificalion, project Kopc adjustment),
(4) If apprbpriste adjustments to a discretionary award canrwt be made, the recipient has agreed in writing to any
necessary reduction of the award amount in any amount sutTicisnt to prevent duplication (as determined by OJ?), and
(5) a Cmnt Adjustment Notice has been issued to remove '.his condition.

52. The rocipitnt is authorized to i:»cur obligations, expend, and draw down fimds for travel, lodging, anil per diem costs ,
only, in on amount not lO citcscd S5,000, for the sole purpose of attending u required OJP conrcrencc tsscciatcd vnth
this grcr.i f vnrd. The grantee is not tiithorized to incur any,additional obligations, or moke any additiona! expenditure.*
or draw dcv/r.s until the mvarding agency and the Office cfth; Chief Financial Officer (OCFO) has revirx'cd and
approved tie recipient's budget and budget nairative, and a Grant Adjustment Notice (CAN) has been issued to remove
this snccisl condition.;o.-. -y'y. ■ ■ .y :

53. -Rcbipiwi certifies that it docs not promote, support, or advocate the legalization or practice of prosiitution, nor will it
; use-grant f.-Jids or program match funds to promote, rapport, or advocate the legalization or pmctice of prostitution.

OJP FORM 49(W3 (REV. 4-tS)



GRANT AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Subrccipient hereby
Mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Identification and Derinitions.

I.I. State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Justice

1.2. State Agency Address

33 Capitol Street, Concord, NH 03301

1.3. Subrccipient Name
New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and
Sexual Violence

1.4. Subrecipient Address '

POBOX353, Concord, NH 03301 ^

1.5 Subrecipient Phone #

603-224-8893

1.6. Account Number

^01 a- crgi'5^

1.7. m Date 1.8. Grant Limitation

$
307,696

1.9. Grant Officer fgr State Agency

Kathleen B. Carr

1.10. State Agency Telephone Number

603-271-1234

"By signing this form we certify that we have complied with any public meeting requirement for acceptance of this grant,
including if applicable RSA 31:95-b."

I.ll. Subrecipient Signature 1 , 1.12. Name & Title of Subrecipient Signor 1

Subrecipient Signature 2 Applicable Name & Title of Subrccipient Signor 2 IfApplicable

1.13. Acknowledgment: State of New Hampshire, County of A'L<^ ̂ ,
on/l , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12., known to me (or
satisfactorily proven) to be the person whose name is signed in block I.I 1., and acknowledged that he/she executed this
document, in.the capacity indicated in block 1.12.

I. J3.1. Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

1.13.2'. fyamc& Title of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

icx I ''^h ̂  AJc
1.14. State Agency Signature(s) 1.15. Name & Title of State Agency Signor(s)

_C U£X4-1a\ CfTrT ^
1.16. Approval by Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifO & C approval required)

1.17. Approval by Governor and Council (if applicable)

By: On: /  /

2.SCOPE OF WORK: In exchange for grant funds provided by the State of New Hampshire, acting through the Agency
identified in block I.I (hereinafter referred to as "the State"), the Subrccipient identified in block 1.3 (hereinafter referred to as
"the Subrccipient"), shall perform that work identified and more particularly described in the scope of work attached hereto as
EXHIBIT A (the scope of work being hereinafter referred to as "the Project").

iJY^
Rev. 9/2015 Page 1 of 22' Subrecipient Initial(s):
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4,

4.1.

4.2.

5.

5.!.

5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

7.

7.1.

7.2.

8.1.

8.2.

8.3.

9.

9.1.

AREA COVERED. Except as otherwise specifically provided for herein, the 9.2.
Subrecipient shall perform the Project in, and with respect to, the Slate of New
Hampshire.
EFFECTIVE DATE: COMPLETION OF PROJECT.

This Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become 9.3.
effective on the date on the date of approval of this Agreement by the Govcmor
and Council of the State of New Hampshire if required (block 1.17), or upon 9.4.
signature by the Slate Agency as shown in block 1.14 ("the effective date").
Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, the Project, including all .
reports required by this Agreement, shall be completed in ITS entirety prior to
the date in block 1.7 (hereinafter referred to as "the Completion Date").
GRANT AMOUNT: LIMITATION ON AMOUNT: VOUCHERS: PAYMENT. 9.5.

The Grant Amount is identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT B,
attached hereto. 10.

The manner of, and schedule of payment shall be as set forth in EXHIBIT B.
In accordance with the provisions set forth in EXHIBIT B, and in consideration
of the satisfactory performance of the Project, as determined by the State, and as
limited by subparagraph 5.5 of these general provisions, the State shall pay the
Subrecipient the Grant Amount. The State shall withhold from the amount
otherwise payable to the Subrecipient under this subparagraph 5.3 those sums
required, or permitted, to be withheld pursuant to N.H. RSA 80:7 through 7-c.
The payment by the State of the Grant amount shall be the only, and the
complete payment to the Subrecipient for at) expenses, of whatever nature, II.
incurred by the Subrecipient in the performance hereof, and shall be the only, 11.1.
and the complete, compensation to the Subrecipient for the Project. The State
shall have no liabilities to the Subrecipient other than the Grant Amount.
Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, and 11.1.1
notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no event shall the total of all 11.1.2
payments authorized, or actually made, hereunder exceed the Grant limitation 11.1.3
set forth in block 1.8 of these general provisions. ^ 11.1.4
COMPLIANCE BY SUBRECIPIENT WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS. 11.2.

In connection with the performance of the Project, the Subrecipient shall comply
with all statutes, laws regulations, and orders of federal, state, county, or 1 1.2.1
municipal authorities which shall impose any obligations or duty upon the
Subrecipient, including the acquisition of any and ail necessary permits.
RECORDS and ACCOUNTS.

Between the Effective Date and the date three (3) years after the Completion
Date the Subrecipient shall keep detailed accounts of.all expenses incurred in 11.2.2
connection with the Project, including, but not limited to, costs of
administration, transportation, insurance, telephone calls, and clerical materials
and services. Such accounts shall be supported by receipts, invoices, bills and
other similar documents.

Between the Effective Date and the date three (3) years after the Completion
Date, at any time during the Subrecipient's normal business hours, and as often 11.2.3
as the State shall demand, the Subrecipient shall make available to the State all
records pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement. The Subrecipient shall 11.2.4
permit the State to audit, examine, and reproduce such records, and to make
audits of all contracts, invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel, data 12.
(as that term is hereinafter defined), and other information relating to all matters 12.1,
covered by this Agreement. As used in this paragraph, "Subrecipient" includes
all persons, natural or fictional, affiliated with, controlled by, or under common
ownership with, the entity identified as the Subrecipient in block 1.3 of these
provisions
PERSONNEL.

The Subrecipient shall, at its own expense, provide all personnel necessary to 12.2.
perform the Project. The Subrecipient warrants that all personnel engaged in the
Projeet shall be qualified to perform such Project, and shall be properly licensed
and authorized to perform such Project under all applicable laws.
The Subrecipient shall not hire, and it shall not permit any subcontractor, 12.3.
subgrantee, or other person, firm or corporation with whom it is engaged in a
combined effon to perform the Project, to hire any person who has a contractual
relationship with the State, or who is a State officer or employee, elected or
appointed.
The Grant Officer shall be the representative of the State hereunder. In the event 12.4.
of any dispute hereunder, the interpretation of this Agreement by the Grant
Officer, and his/her decision on any dispute, shall be final.
DATA: RETENTION OF DATA: ACCESS.

As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all information and 13.
things developed or obtained during the performance of, or acquired or
developed by reason of, this Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies,
reports, files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic representations,
Computer programs, computer printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, paper, and
documents, all whether finished or unfinished.

Rev. 9/2015 Page 2 of

Between the Effective Date and the Completion Date the Subrecipient shall
grant to the State, or any person designated by it, unrestricted access to all data
for examination, duplication, publication, translation, sale, disposal, or for any
other purpose whatsoever.
No data shall be subject to copyright in the United States or any other country by
anyone other than the State.
On and after the Effective Date all data, and any property which has been
received from the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under
this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be returned to the
State upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement for any reason,
whichever shall first occur.

The State, and anyone it shall designate, shall have unrestricted authority to
publish, disclose, distribute and otherwise use, in whole or in part, all data.
CONDITIONAL NATURE OR AGREEMENT. Notwithstanding anything in
this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuarKC of payments hereunder, are contingent upon
the availability or continued appropriation of funds, and in no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such available or
appropriated funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of those funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become
available, if ever, and shall have the right to terminate this Agreement

immediately upon giving the Subrecipient notice of such termination.
EVENT OF DEFAULT: REMEDIES.

Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the Subrecipient shall
constitute an event of default hereunder (hereinafter referred to as "Events of
Default"):
Failure to perform the Project satisfactorily or on schedule; or
Failure to submit any report required hereunder; or
Failure to maintain, or permit access to, the records required hereunder; or
Failure to perform any of the other covenants and conditions of this Agreement.
Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may lake any one, or
more, or all, of the following actions:
Give the Subrecipient a written notice specifying the Event of Default and
requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of a greater or lesser
specification of time, thirty (30) days from the date of the notice; and if the
Event of Default is not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Subrecipient notice of termination; and
Give the Subrecipient a written notice specifying the Event of Default and
suspending all payments to be made under this Agreement and ordering that the
portion of the Grant Amount which would otherwise accrue to the Subrecipient
during the period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Subrecipient has cured the Event of Default shall never be
paid to the Subreeipient; and
Set off against any.other obligation the State may owe to the Subrecipient any
damages the State suffers by reason of any Event of Default; and
Treat the agreement as breached and pursue any of its remedies at law or in
equity, or both.
TERMINATION.

In the event of any early termination of this Agreement for any reason other than
the completion of the Project, the Subrecipient shall deliver to the Grant Officer,
not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of termination, a report (hereinafter
referred to as the "Termination Report") describing in detail all Project Work
performed, and the Grant Amount earned, to and including the date of
termination.

In the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions, the approval of such a Termination Report by the State shall entitle
the Subrecipient to receive that portion of the Grant amount earned to and
including the date of termination.
In the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions, the approval of such a Termination Report by the Stale shall in no
event relieve the Subrecipient from any and all liability for damages sustained or
incurred by the State as a result of the Subrecipient's breach of its obligations
hereunder.

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, cither the State or,
except where notice default has been given to the Subrecipient hereunder, the
Subrecipient, may terminate this Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days
written notice.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST No officer, member of employee of the

Subrecipient, and no representative, officer or employee of the State of New
Hampshire or of the governing body of the locality or localities in which the
Project is to be performed, who exercises any functions or responsibilities in the
review or approval of the undertaking or carrying out of such Project, shall
participate in any decision relating to this Agreement which affects his or her

Subrecipient [nilial(s):

Date:



14.

15.

16.

17.

17.1

17.1.1

17.1.2

personal interest or (he interest or any corporation, partnership, or association 17.2.
in sv-hich he or she is directly or indirectly interested, nor shall he or she have
any personal or pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement or the
proceeds thereof. t
SUBRECIPIENT-S RELATION TO THl- STATE. In the performance of this
Agreement the Subrecipient, its employees, and any subcontractor or.
subgrantee of the Subrecipient are in ail respects independent contractors, and 18.
are neither agents nor employees of the State. Neither the Subrecipient nor any
of its officers, employees, agents, members, subcontractors or sub^antees,
shall have authority to bind the State nor are they entitled to any of the benefits,
workmen's compensation or emoluments provided by the State to its
employees.
ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTS. The Subrecipient shall not assign,
or otherwise transfer any interest in this Agreement without the prior written 19.
consent of the State. None of the Project Work shall be subcontracted or
subgranted by the Subrecipient other than as set forth in Exhibit A without the
prior written consent of the State.
INDEMNIFICATION. The Subrecipient shall defend, indemnify and hold 20.
harmless the State, its officers and employees, from and against any and all
losses suffered by the State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers and employees, by
or on behalf of any person, on account of, based on, resulting from, arising out 21.
of (or which may. be claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the '
Subrecipient or subcontractor, or subgrantee or other agent of the Subrecipient.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein contained shall be deemed to
constitute a waiver of the sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is
hereby reserved to the Stale. This covenant shall survive the termination of
this agreement. 22.
INSURANCE AND BOND

The Subrecipient shall, at its own expense, obtain and maintain in force, or 23.
shall require any subcontractor, subgrantee or assignee performing Project
work to obtain and maintain in force, both for the benefit of the State, the
following insurance;
Statutory workmen's compensation and employees liability insurance for all 24.
employees engaged in the performance of the Project, and
Comprehensive public liability insurance against all claims of bodily injuries,
death or property damage, in amounts not less than $l,(X)0,000 per occurrence
and S2,000,000 aggregate for bodily injury or death any one incident, and
$500,000 for property damage in any one irKident; and

The policies described in subparagraph 17.1 of this paragraph shall be the
standard form employed in the State of New Hampshire, issued by underwriters
acceptable to the State, and authorized to do business in the Stale of New
Hampshire. Each policy shall contain a clause prohibiting cancellation or
modification of the policy earlier than ten (10) days after written notice thereof
has been received by the State.
WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions
hereof after any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event, or any subsequent Event. No express waiver of any Event
of Default shall be deemed a waiver of any provisions hereof. No such failure of
waiver shall be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all
of the provisions hereof upon any further or other default on the part of the
Subrecipient.
NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall be deemed to
have been duly delivered or given at the time of mailing by certified mail,
postage prepaid, in a United States Post Office addressed to the parties at the
addresses first above given,
AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or discharged only
by an instrument in writing signed by the parties hereto and only after approval
of such amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and Council of the
State of New Hampshire, if required or by the signing State Agency.
CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS This Agreement shall be
construed in accordance with the law of the State, of New Hampshire, and is
bindihg'iitfl^^hd inures to the benefit of the partic^and their respective
succesMR ahd assignees. The captions and contchls'oj'tlie "subject" blank are
used only as a matter of convenience, and are not to be considered a part of this .
Agreement or to be used in determining the intend of the parties hereto.
THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to benefit any third parties
and this Agreement shall not be construed to confer any such benefit.
ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This A^cement, which may be executed in a number
of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, constitutes the entire
agreement and understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings relating hereto.
SPECIAL PROVISIONS. .The additional provisions set forth in Exhibit C
hereto are incorporated as part of this agreement.

Rev. 9/2015 Page 3 of Subrecipient Initial(s);
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EXHIBIT A

-SCOPE OFSERVICES-

1. The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence as Subrecipient

shall receive a subgrant from the New Hampshire Department of Justice (DOJ) for

expenses incurred and services provided for activities surrounding the Enhanced

Collaborative Model Task Force to Combat Human Trafficking Grant, including the

Project Director, Community Engagement Activities, and the Evaluation Consultant.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed by the DOJ based on budgeted expenditures

described in Exhibit B. The Subrecipient shall submit incurred expenses for
reimbursement on the state approved expenditure reporting form as provided.

Expenditure reports shall be submitted on a quarterly basis, within fifteen (15) days

following the end of the current quarterly activities. Expenditure reports submitted later
than thirty (30) days following the end of the quarter will be considered late and out of

compliance. For example, with an award that begins on January 1, the first quarterly
report is due on April J5'^ or 15 days after the close of the first quarter ending on March
31.

3. Subrecipient is required to maintain supporting documentation for all grant expenses both
state funds and match if provided and to produce those documents upon request of this
office or any other state or federal audit authority. Grant project supporting

documentation should be maintained for at least 5 years after the close of the project.

4. Subrecipient shall be subject to periodic desk audits and program reviews by DOJ. Such
desk audits and program reviews shall be scheduled with Subrecipient and every attempt

shall be made by Subrecipient to accommodate the schedule.

5. All correspondence and submittals shall be directed to:

NH Department of Justice

Grants Management Unit

33 Capitol Street

Concord, NH 03301

603-271-1261 orTanya.Pitman@doj.nh.gov.

Page 4 of 29 .
Subrecipient lnltialsA/V)S

Date



EXHIBIT B

-METHOD OF PAYMENT-

1. The Subrecipient shall receive reimbursement in exchange for approved expenditure

reports as described in EXHIBIT A.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed within thirty (30) days following the DOJ's

approval of expenditures. Said payment shall be made to the Subrecipient's account

receivables address per the Financial System of the State of New Hampshire.

3. The State's obligation to compensate the Subrecipient under this Agreement shall not

exceed the price limitation set forth in form P-37 section 1.8.

3a. The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $307,696.00 of

the total Grant Limitation from Governor and Council approval toot^\3v . with
approved expenditure reports. This shall be contingent on continued federal ,

funding and program performance.

i. With sufficient reason and upon federal approval the Subrecipient may

apply for an extension of the grant period for up to three months. The

Subrecipient must submit the request in writing. No extension is

granted until approval is received by DOJ in writing. -

ii. Neither the Subrecipient nor DOJ will be responsible for any expenses

or costs incurred under this agreement prior to Governor and Council

approval, nor after r 12/31/22 if an extension is granted.
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EXHIBIT C

-SPECIAL PROVISIONS-

Subrecipients shall also be compliant at all times with the terms, conditions and

specifications detailed in the Special Conditions, which are subject to annual review.
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EXHIBIT C

2019-VT-BX-K024

,  SPECIAL CONDITIONS

1. Requirements of the award;,remedies for non-compliance or for materially false .
statements

The conditions of this award are material requirements of the award. Compliance with any
assurances or certifications submitted by or on behalf of the subrecipient that relate to conduct
during the period of performance also is a material requirement of this award. By signing and
accepting this award on behalf of the recipient, the authorized subrecipient official accepts all
material.requirements of the award, and specifically adopts all such assurances or certifications
as if personally executed by the authorized subrecipient official. Failure to comply with any one
or more of these award requirements — whether a condition set outjn full below, a condition
incorporated by reference below, or an assurance or certification related to conduct during the
award period - - may result in the Office of Justice Programs ("OJP") taking appropriate action
with respect to the subrecipient and the award. Among other things, the OJP may withhold award
funds, disallow costs, or suspend or terminate the award. The U.S. Department of Justice
("DOJ"), including OJP, also may take other legal action as appropriate. Any materially false,
fictitious, or fraudulent statement to the federal government related to this award (or concealment
or omission of a material fact) may be the subject of criminal prosecution (including under 18
U.S.C. 1001 and/or 1621, and/or 34 U.S.C. I027I-I0273), and also may lead to imposition of
civil penalties and administrative remedies for false claims or otherwise (including under 31 »
U.S.C. 3729-3730 and 3801-3812). Should any provision of a requirement of this award be held
to be invalid or unenforceable by Its terms, that provision shall first be applied with a limited
construction so as to give it the maximum effect permitted by law. Should it be held, instead, that
the provision is utterly invalid or -unenforceable, such provision shall be deemed severable from
this award.

2. Applicability of Part 200 Uniform Requirements
The Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements in 2 C.F.R.
Part 200, as adopted and supplemented by DOJ in 2 C.F.R. Part 2800 (together, the "Part 200
Uniform Requirements") apply to this FY 2019 award from OJP. The Part 200 Uniform
Requirements were first adopted by DOJ on December 26, 2014. If this-FY 2019 award
supplements funds previously awarded by OJP under the same award number (e.g., funds
awarded during or before December 2014), the Part 200 Uniform Requirements apply with
respect to all funds under that award number (regardless of the award date, and regardless of
whether derived from the initial award or a supplemental award) that are obligated on or after the
acceptance date of this FY 2019 award. For more information and resources on the Part 200
Uniform Requirements as they relate to OJP awards and subawards ("subgrants"), see the OJP
website at httDs://oip.gov/fundin&/Part200UniformReQuirements.htm. Record retention and

access: Records pertinent to the award that the recipient (and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at
any tier) must retain — typically for a period of 3 years from the date of submission of the final
expenditure report (SF 425), unless a different retention period applies ~ and to which the
recipient (and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier) must provide access, include
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EXHIBIT C

performance measurement information, in addition to the financial records, supporting
documents, statistical records, and other pertinent records indicated at 2 C.F.R. 200.333. In the
event that an award-related question arises from documents or other materials prepared or
distributed by OJP that may appear to conflict with, or differ in some way from, the provisions of
the Part 200 Uniform Requirements, the subrecipient is to contact NHDOJ promptly for
clarification.

3. Compliance with DOJ Grants Financial Guide
References to the DOJ Grants Financial Guide are to the DOJ Grants Financial Guide as posted
on the OJP website (currently, the "DOJ Grants Financial Guide" available at
https://ojp.gov/flnancialguide/DOJ/index.htm), including any updated version that may be posted
during the period of performance. The subrecipient agrees to comply with the DOJ Grants
Financial Guide.

4. Reclassification of various statutory provisions to a new Title 34 of the United States
Code

On September 1, 2017, various statutory provisions previously codified elsewhere in the U.S.
Code were editorially reclassifled (that is, moved and renumbered) to a new Title 34, entitled
"Crime Control and Law Enforcement." The reclassification encompassed a number of statutory
provisions pertinent to OJP awards (that is, OJP grants and cooperative agreements), including
many provisions previously codified in Title 42 of the U.S. Code.
Effective as of September 1, 2017, any reference in this award document to a statutory provision
that has been reclassified to the new Title 34 of the U.S. Code is to be read as a reference to that

statutoi7 provision as reclassifled to Title 34. This rule of construction specifically includes
references set out in award conditions, references set out in material incorporated by reference
through award conditions, and references set out in other award requirements.

5. Requirements related to "de minimis" indirect cost rate
A subrecipient that is eligible under the Part 200 Uniform Requirements and other applicable
law to use the "de minimis" indirect cost rate described in 2 C.F.R. 200.414(f), and that
elects to use the "de minimis" indirect cost rate, must advise OJP in writing of both its
eligibility and its election, and must comply with all associated requirements in the Part 200
Uniform Requirements. The "de minimis" rate may be applied only to modified total direct
costs (MTDC) as defined by the Part 200 Uniform Requirements.

6. Employment eligibility verification for hiring under the award
1 .The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must-

A. Ensure that, as part of the hiring process for any position within the United
States that is or will be funded (in whole or in part) with award funds, the
recipient (or any subrecipient) properly verifies the employment eligibility of
the individual who is being hired, consistent with the provisions of 8 U.S.C.
I324a(a)(l)and (2).
B. Notify all persons associated with the recipient (or any subrecipient) who

Page 8 of 29 .

Subrecipient Initials

Date



EXHIBIT C

are or will be involved in activities under this award of both—

(1) this award requirement for verification of employment eligibility, and
(2) the associated provisions in 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(l) and (2) that, generally
speaking, make.it unlawful, in the United States, to hire (or recruit for.
employment) certain aliens.

C. Provide training (to the extent necessary) to those persons required by this
condition to be notifled-of the award requirement for employment eligibility
verification and of the associated provisions of 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(l) and (2).

D. As part of the recordkeeping for the award (including pursuant to the Part
200 Uniform Requirements), maintain records of all employment eligibility
verifications pertinent to compliance with this award condition in accordance
with Form 1-9 record retention requirements, as well as records of all pertinent
notifications and trainings.

2. Monitoring
The recipient's monitoring responsibilities include monitoring of subrecipient
compliance with this condition.
3. Allowable costs

To the extent that such costs are not reimbursed under any other federal program, award

funds may be obligated for the reasonable, necessary, and allocable costs (if any) of

actions designed to ensure compliance with this condition.

4. Rules of construction

A. Staff involved in the hiring process
For purposes of this condition, persons "who are or will be involved in
activities under this award" specifically includes (without limitation) any and
ail recipient (or any subrecipient) officials or other staff who are or will be
involved in the hiring process with respect to a position that is or will be
funded (in whole or in part) with award funds.
B. Employment eligibility confirmation with E-Verify *
For purposes of satisfying the requirement of this condition regarding
verification of employment eligibility, the recipient (or any subrecipient) may
choose to participate in, and use, E-Verify (www.e-verify.gov), provided an
appropriate person authorized to act on behalf of the recipient (or
subrecipient) uses E-Verify (and follows the proper E-Verify procedures,
including in the event of a "Tentative Nonconfirmation" or a "Final
Nonconfirmation") to confirm employment eligibility for each hiring for a
position in the United States that is or will be funded (in whole or in part)
with award funds.

C. "United States" specifically includes the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico,
Guam, the Virgin Islands of the United
States, and the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands.

D. Nothing in this condition shall be understood to authorize or require any
recipient, any subrecipient at any tier, or any person or other entity, to violate
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any federal law, including any applicable civil rights or nondiscrimination
law.

E. Nothing in this condition, including in paragraph 4.B., shall be understood
to relieve any recipient, any subrecipient at any tier, or any person or other
entity, of any obligation otherwise imposed by law, including 8 U.S.C.
1324a(a)(l)and(2)'.

Questions about E-Verify should be directed to DHS. For more information"about E-Verify
visit the E-"Verify website (https://www.e-verify.gov/) or email E-Verify at E-
Verify(gdhs.gov. E-Verify employer agents can email EVerify at E-
VerifvEmploverAgent@dhs.gov. Questions about the meaning or scope of this condition
should be directed to NHDOJ, before award acceptance.

7. Requirement to report actual or imminent breach of personally identifiable
information (Pll)

The subrecipient (at any tier) must have written procedures in place to respond in the event of an

actual or imminent "breach" (0MB M-I7-I2) if it (or a subrecipient)-- I) creates, collects, uses,

processes, stores, maintains, disseminates, discloses, or disposes of "personally identifiable

information (Pll)" (2 CFR 200.79) within the scope of an OJP grant-funded program or activity,

or 2) uses or operates a "Federal information system" (0MB

Circular A-130). The recipient's breach procedures must include a requirement to report
actual or imminent breach of Pll to an OJP Program Manager no later than 24 hours after an
occurrence of an actual breach, or the detection of an imminent breach.

8. All subawards ("subgrants") must have specific federal authorization
The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all
applicable requirements for authorization of any subaward. This condition applies to
agreements that - for purposes of federal grants administrative requirements ~ OJP
considers a "subaward" (and therefore does not consider a procurement "contract"). The
details of the requirement for authorization of any subaward are posted on the OJP web site
at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/SubawardAuthorization.htm (Award condition: All
subawards ("subgrants") must have specific federal authorization), and are incorporated by
reference here.

9. Specific post-award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in any
procurement contract that would exceed $250,000. The Subrecipient at any tier, must comply
with all applicable requirements to obtain specific advance approval to use a noncompetitive
approach in any procurement contract that would exceed the
Simplified Acquisition Tlireshold (currently, $250,000). This condition applies to agreements
that - for purposes of federal grants administrative requirements ~ OJP considers a procurement
"contract" (and therefore does not consider a subaward).
The details of the requirement for advance approval to use a noncompetitive approach in a
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procurement contract under an OJP award are posted on the OJP web site at
http://ojp.gov/funding/ExpIore/NoncompetitiveProcurement.htm (^ward
condition: Specific post-award approval required to use a noncompetilive approach in a
procurement contract (if.contract would exceed $25.0,000)), and are incorporated by reference
here.

10. Unreasonable restrictions on competition under the award; association with federal
government

SCOPE. This condition applies with respect to any procurement of property or services that
is funded (in whole or in part) by this award, whether by the recipient or by any subrecipieni
at any tier, and regardless of the dollar amount of the purchase or acquisition, the method of
procurement, or the nature of any legal instrument used. The provisions of this condition
must be among those included in any subaward (at any tier).
1. No discrimination, in procurement transactions, against associates of the federal
government

Consistent with the (DOJ) Part 200 Uniform Requirements — including as set out at 2 C.F.R.
200.300 (requiring awards to be "manage[d] and administer[ed] in a manner so as to ensure
that Federal funding is expended and associated programs are implemented in full
accordance with U.S. statutory and public policy requirements") and 200.319(a) (generally
requiring "[a]ll procurement transactions [to] be conducted in a manner providing full and
open'competition" and forbidding practices "restrictive of competition," such as "[p]lacing
unreasonable requirements on
firms in order for them to qualify to do business" and taking "[ajny arbitrary action in the
procurement process") - no recipient (or subrecipient, at any tier) may (in any procurement
transaction) discriminate against any person or entity on the basis of such person or entity's
status as an "associate of the federal government" (or on the basis of such person or entity's
status as a parent, affiliate, or subsidiary of such an associate), except as expressly set out in
2 C.F.R. 200.319(a) or as specifically authorized by USDOJ.
2. Monitoring
The recipient's monitoring responsibilities include monitoring of subrecipient compliance
with this condition.

3. Allowable costs

To the extent that such costs are not reimbursed under any other federal program, award
funds may be obligated for the reasonable, necessary, and allocable costs (if any) of actions
designed to ensure compliance with this condition.
4. Rules of construction

A. The term "associate of the federal government" means any person or entity engaged or
employed (in the past or at present) by or on behalf of the federal government — as an
employee, contractor or subcontractor (at any tier), grant
recipient or -subrecipient (at any tier), agent, or otherwise — in undertaking any work,
project, or activity for or on behalf of (or in providing goods or services to or on behalf of)
the federal government, and includes any applicant for such employment or engagement, and
any person or entity committed by legal instrument to undertake any such work, project, or
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activity (or to provide such goods or services) in future.
B. Nothing in this condition shall be understood to authorize or require any recipient, any
subrecipient at any tier, or
any person or other entity, to violate any federal law, including any applicable civil rights or
nondiscrimination law.

11. Requirements pertaining to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in persons
(including reporting requirements and OJP authority to terminate award). The recipient, and
any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements
(including requirements to report allegations) pertaining to prohibited conduct related to the
trafficking of persons, whether on the part of recipients, subrecipients ("subgrantees"), or
individuals defined (for purposes of this condition) as "employees" of the recipient or of any
subrecipient.
The details of the subrecipient's obligations related to prohibited conduct related to
trafficking in persons are posted on the OJP web site at
http://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/ProhibitedConduct-Trafflcking.htm (Award condition:
Prohibited conduct by recipients and subrecipients related to trafficking in persons
(including reporting requirements and OJP authority to terminate award)), and are
incorporated by reference here.

12. Determination of suitability to interact with participating minors
SCOPE. This condition applies to this award if it is indicated — in the application for the
award (as approved by DOJ)(or in the application for any subaward, at any tier), the DOJ
funding announcement (solicitation), or an associated federal statute - that a purpose of
some or all of the activities to be carried out under the award (whether by
the recipient, or a subrecipient at any tier) is to benefit a set of individuals under 18 years of
age.

The recipient, and any subrecipient at any tier, must make determinations of suitability
before certain individuals may interact with participating minors. This requirement applies
regardless of an individual's employment status. The details of this requirement are posted
on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/Interact-Minors.htm
(Award condition: Determination of suitability required, in advance, for certain individuals
who may interact with participating minors), and are incorporated by reference here.

13. Compliance with applicable rules regarding approval, planning, and reporting of
conferences, meetings, trainings, and other events.
The subrecipient at any tier, must comply with all applicable laws, regulations, policies, and
official DOJ guidance (including specific cost limits, prior approval and reporting
requirements, where applicable) governing the use of federal funds for expenses related to
conferences (as that term is defined by DOJ), including the provision of food and/or beverages
at such conferences, and costs of attendance at such conferences. Information on the pertinent
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DOJ definition of conferences and the rules applicable to this award appears in the DOJ
Grants Financial Guide (currently, as section 3.10 of "Post-award Requirements" in the "2015
DOJ Grants Financial Guide").

14. Requirement for data on performance and effectiveness under the award
The subrecipient must collect and maintain data that measure the performance and
effectiveness of work under this award. The data must be provided to OJP in the manner
(including within the timeframes) specified by OJP in the program solicitation or other
applicable written guidance. Data collection supports compliance with the Government
Performance and Results Act (GPRA) and the GPRA Modernization Act of 2010, and other
applicable laws.

15. OJP Training Guiding Principles
Any training or training materials that the subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier - develops
or delivers with OJP award funds must adhere to the OJP Training Guiding Principles for
Grantees and Subgrantees, available at
https://oip.gov/fundina/imDlement/TrainingPrinciplesForGrantees-$ubgrantees.htm.

16. Effect of failure to address audit issues

The subrecipient understands and agrees that the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as.
appropriate) may withhold award funds, or may impose other related requirements, if (as
determined by the DOJ awarding agency) the subrecipient does not satisfactorily and
promptly address outstanding issues from audits required by the Part 200 Uniform
Requirements (or by the terms of this award), or other outstanding issues that arise in i
connection with audits, investigations, or reviews of DOJ awards.

17. Potential imposition of additional requirements
The subrecipient agrees to comply with any additional requirements that may be imposed by
the NHDOJ or US DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) during the period of
performance for this award, if the subrecipient is designated as "high risk" for purposes of
the DOJ high-risk grantee list.

18. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination -
28 C.F.R. Part 42.

The subrecipient (subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements of
28 C.F.R. Part 42, specifically including any applicable requirements in subpart E of 29
C.F.R. Part 42 that relate to an equal employment opportunity program.

19. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination -
28 C.F.R. Part 54

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all
applicable requirements of28 C.F.R. Part 54, which relates to nondiscrimination on the basis
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of sex in certain "education programs."

20. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination -
28 C.F.R. Part 38

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all
applicable requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 38 (as may be applicable from time to time),
specifically including any applicable requirements regarding written notice to program
beneficiaries and prospective program beneficiaries. Currently, among other things, 28
C.F.R. Part 38 includes rules that prohibit specific forms of discrimination on the basis of
religion, a religious belief, a refusal to hold a religious belief, or refusal to attend or
participate in a religious practice. Part 38, currently, also sets out rules and requirements that
pertain to subrecipient organizations that engage iri or conduct explicitly religious activities,
as well as rules and requirements that pertain to recipients and subrecipients that are faith-
based or religious organizations. The text of 28 C.F.R. Part 38 is available via the Electronic
Code of Federal Regulations (currently accessible at "
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/ECFR?page=browse), by browsing to Title 28-Judicial
Administration, Chapter 1, Part 38, under e-CFR "current" data.

21. Restrictions on "lobbying"
In general, as a matter of federal law, federal funds awarded by OJP may not be used by the
subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, either directly or indirectly, to support or oppose the
enactment, repeal, modification, or adoption of any law, regulation, or policy, at any level of
government. See 18 U.S.C. 1913. (There may be exceptions if an applicable federal statute
specifically authorizes certain activities that otherwise would be barred by law.) Another
federal law generally prohibits federal funds awarded by OJP from being used by the
recipient, or any subrecipient at any tier, to pay any person to influence (or attempt to
influence) a federal agency, a Member of
Congress, or Congress (or an official or employee of any of them) with respect to the
awarding of a federal grant or cooperative agreement, subgrant, contract, subcontract, or
loan, or with respect to actions such as renewing, extending, or modifying any such award.
See 31 U.S.C. 1352. Certain exceptions to this law apply, including an exception that applies
to Indian tribes and tribal organizations. Should any question arise as to whether a particular
use of federal funds by a recipient (or subrecipient) would or might fall within the scope of
these prohibitions, the subrecipient is to contact OJP for guidance, and may not proceed
without the express prior written approval of OJP.

22. Compliance with general appropriations-law restrictions on the use of federal funds
(FY 2019) The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with
all applicable restrictions on the use of federal funds set out in federal appropriations
statutes. Pertinent restrictions, including from various "general provisions" in the
Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2019, are set out at
.https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/FY19AppropriationsRestrictions.htm, and are incorporated
by reference here. Should a question arise as to whether a particular use-of federal funds by a
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recipient (or a subrecipient) would or might fall within the scope of an appropriations-law
restriction, the recipient is to contact OJP for guidance, and may not proceed without the
express prior written approval of OJP.

23. Reporting potential fraud, waste and abuse and similar misconduct.
The subrecipient ("subgrantee") must promptly refer to the DOJ Office of the Inspector
General (OIG) any credible evidence that a principal, employee, agent, subrecipient,
contractor, subcontractor, or other person has, in connection with funds under this award —
(1) submitted a claim that violates the False Claims Act; or (2) committed a criminal or civil
violation of laws pertaining to fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, gratuity, or similar
misconduct.

Potential fraud, waste, abuse, or misconduct involving or relating to funds under this award
should be reported to the OIG by- (1) mail directed to: Office of the Inspector General, U.S.
Department of Justice, Investigations Division, 1425 New York Avenue, N.W. Suite 7100,
Washington, DC 20530; and/or (2) the DOJ OIG hotline: (contact information in English
and Spanish) at (800) 869-4499 (phone) or (202) 616-9881 (fax). Additional information is
available from the DOJ OIG website at https://oig.justice.gov/hotline.

24. Restrictions and certifications regarding non-disclosure agreements and related
matters.

no Subrecipient under this award, or entity that receives a procurement contract or subcontract
with any funds under this award, may require any employee or contractor to sign an internal
confidentiality agreement or statement that prohibits or otherwise restricts, or purports to
prohibit or restrict, the reporting (in accordance with law) of waste, fraud, or abuse to an
Investigative or law enforcement representative of a federal department or agency authorized
to receive such information. The foregoing is not intended, and shall not be understood by the
agency making this award, to contravene requirements applicable to Standard Form 312
(which relates to classified information). Form 4414 (which relates to sensitive
compartmented information), or any other form issued by a federal department or agency
governing the nondisclosure of classified information.

a. In accepting this award, the subrecipient—
i. represents that it neither requires nor has required internal

confidentiality agreements or statements from employees or
contractors that currently prohibit or otherwise currently restrict
(or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or contractors from
reporting waste, fraud, or abuse as described above; and

ii. certifies that, if it learns or is notified that it is or has been

requiring its employees or contractors to execute agreements or
statements that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport to
prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as
described above, it will immediately stop any further obligations
of award funds, will provide prompt written notification to the
federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit
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resumption oO such obligations only if expressly authorized to do
so by that agency. ;

b. If the subrecipient does or is authorized under this award to make
•  subawards ("subgrants"), procurement contracts, or both-

i. it represents that— it has determined that no other entity
that the recipient's application proposes may or will
receive award funds (whether through a subaward
("subgrant"), procurement contract, or subcontract under
a procurement contract) either requires or has required

internal confidentiality agreements or statements from
employees or contractors that currently prohibit or
otherwise currently restrict (or purport to prohibit or
restrict) employees or contractors from reporting waste,
fraud, or abuse as described above; and

ii. it has made appropriate inquiry, or otherwise has an
adequate factual basis, to support this representation; and

c. it certifies that, if it learns or is notified that any subrecipient,
contractor, or subcontractor entity that receives funds under this award
is or has been requiring its employees or contractors to execute
agreements or statements that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport
to prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described
above, it will immediately stop any further obligations of award funds
to or by that entity, will provide prompt written notification to the
federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit
resumption of) such obligations only if expressly authorized to do so
by that agency.

Compliance with 41 U.S.C. 4712 (including prohibitions on reprisal;
notice to employees)

25. The subrecipient at any tier must comply with, and is subject to, all applicable
provisions of 41 U.S.C. 4712, including all applicable provisions that prohibit, under
specified circumstances, discrimination against an employee as reprisal for the employee's
disclosure of information related to gross mismanagement of a federal grant, a gross waste of
federal funds, an abuse of authority relating to a federal grant, a substantial and specific
danger to public health or safety, or a violation of law, rule, or regulation related to a federal
grant.

The subrecipient also must inform its employees, in writing (and in the predominant
native language of the workforce), of employee rights and remedies under 41 U.S.C. 4712.

Should a question arise as to the applicability of the provisions of 41 U.S.C. 4712 to this
award, the recipient is to contact the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate)
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for guidance.

26. Encouragement of policies to ban text messaging while driving
Pursuant to Executive Order 13513; "Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging
While Driving," 74 Fed. Reg. 51225 (October 1, 2009), DOJ encourages recipients and
subrecipients ("subgrantees") to adopt and enforce policies banning employees from text
messaging while driving any vehicle during the course of performing work funded by this
award, and to establish workplace safety policies and conduct education, awareness, and
other outreach to decrease crashes caused by distracted drivers.

27. Requirement to disclose whether subrecipient is designated "high risk" by a federal
grant-making agency outside of DOJ If the subrecipient is designated "high risk" by a
federal grant-making agency outside of DOJ, currently or at any time during the course of
the period of performance under this award, the subrecipient must disclose that fact and
certain related information to NHDOJ and OJP by email at
OJP.ComplianceReporting@ojp.usdoj.gov. For purposes of this disclosure, high risk
includes any status under which a federal awarding agency provides additional oversight due
to the recipient's past performance, or other programmatic or financial concerns with the
recipient. The recipient's disclosure must include the following:

1. The federal awarding agency that currently designates the subrecipient high
risk,

2. The date the subrecipient was designated high risk,
3. The high-risk point of contact at that federal awarding agency (name,
phone number, and email address), and
4. The reasons for the high-risk status, as set out by the federal awarding
agency.

28. The subrecipient must certify that Limited English Proficiency persons have
meaningful access to the services under this program(s). National origin discrimination
includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP).
To ensure compliance with Title V! and the Safe Streets Act, recipients are required to take
reasonable steps to ensure
that LEP persons have meaningful access to their programs. Meaningful access may entail
providing language assistance services, including oral and written translation when
necessary. The U.S. Department of Justice has issued guidance for grantees to help them
comply with Title VI requirements. The guidance document can be accessed on the Internet
at www.lep.gov.

29. Required attendance at BJA-sponsored events
The subrecipient (at any tier) must participate in BJA-sponsored training events, technical
assistance events, or conferences held by BJA or its designees, upon BJA's request.

30. The subrecipient agrees to submit to NHDOJ for review and BJA approval of any
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curricula, training materials, proposed publications, reports, or any other written materials
that will be published, including web-based materials and web site content,
through funds from this grant at least thirty (30) working days prior to the targeted
dissemination date. Any written, visual, or audio publications, with the exception of press
releases, whether published at the grantee's or government's expense, shall contain the
following statements:

"This project was supported by Grant No. 20I9-VT-BX-K024 awarded by the
Bureau of Justice Assistance. The Bureau of Justice Assistance is a component
of the Department of Justice's Office of Justice Programs, which also includes
the Bureau of Justice Statistics, the National Institute of Justice, the Office of

Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Preyention, the Office for Victims of Crime,
and the SMART Office. Points of view or opinions in this document are those of
the author and do not necessarily represent the official position or policies of the
U.S. Department of Justice."

The current edition of the DOJ Grants Financial Guide provides guidance on allowable
printing and publication activities.

31. Any Web site that is funded in whole or in part under this award must include the
following statement on the home
page, on all major entry pages (i.e., pages (exclusive of documents) whose primary purpose
is to navigate the user to interior content), and on any pages from which a visitor may access
or use a Web-based service, including any pages that provide results or outputs from the
service:

"This Web site is funded [insert "in part," if applicable] through a grant from the
[insert name of OJP component]. Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Department
of Justice. Neither the U.S. Department of Justice nor any of its components
operate, control, are responsible for, or necessarily endorse, this Web site
(including, without limitation, its content, technical infrastructure, and policies,
and any services or tools provided)."

The full text of the foregoing statement must be clearly visible on the home page. On other
pages, the statement may be included through a link, entitled "Notice of Federal Funding and
Federal Disclaimer," to the full text of the statement.

32. The subrecipient agrees to cooperate with any assessments, national evaluation
efforts, or information or data collection requests, including, but not limited to, the provision
of any information required for the assessment or evaluation of any activities within this
project.

33. Justification of consultant rate Approval of this award does not indicate approval of
any consultant rate in excess of $650 per day. A detailed justification must be submitted to
and approved by the OJP program office prior to obligation or expenditure of such funds.
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EXHIBIT C

34. With respect to this award, federal funds may not be used, to pay cash compensation
(salary plus bonuses) to any employee of the award subrecipient .at a rate that exceeds 110%
of the maximum annual salary payable to a member of the federal government's Senior
Executive Service (SES) at an agency with a Certified SES Performance Appraisal System
for that year. (An award recipient may compensate an employee at a higher rate, provided
the amount in excess of this compensation limitation is paid with non-federal funds.)

35. This limitation on compensation rates allowable under this award may be waived on
an individual basis at the discretion of the OJP official indicated in the program

announcement under which this award is made.

36. The subrecipient shall submit semiannual progress reports. Progress reports shall be
submitted within 30 days after the end of the reporting periods, which are June 30 and
December 31, for the life of the award.

37. Within 30 calendar days after the end of any conference, meeting, retreat, seminar,
symposium, training activity, or similar event funded under this award, and the total cost of
which exceeds $20,000 in award funds, the subrecipient must provide the NH DOJ grant
manager with the following information and itemized costs:

1) name of event;
2) event dates;
3) location of event;
4) number of federal attendees;
5) number of non-federal attendees;
6) costs of event space, including rooms for break-out sessions;
7) costs of audio visual services;
8) other equipment costs (e.g., computer fees, telephone fees);
9) costs of printing and distribution;
10) costs of meals provided during the event;
11) costs of refreshments provided during the event;
12) costs of event planner;
13) costs of event facilitators; and
14) any other costs associated with the event.

The subrecipient must also itemize and report any of the following attendee (including
participants, presenters, speakers) costs that are paid or reimbursed with cooperative agreement
funds:

1) meals and incidental expenses (M&IE portion of per diem);
2) lodging;
3) transportation to/from event location (e.g., common carrier. Privately Owned Vehicle
(POV)); and,
4) local transportation (e.g., rental car, POV) at event location.
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Note that if any item is paid for with registration fees, or any other non-award funding,
then that portion of the expense
does not need to be reported.

Further instructions regarding the submission of this data, and how to determine costs, are
available in the OJP Financial Guide Conference Cost Chapter.

38. Cooperating with OJP Monitoring

The subrecipient agrees to cooperate with NHDOJ and OJP monitoring of this award pursuant to
OJP's guidelines, protocols, and procedures, and to cooperate with OJP (including the grant
manager for this award and the Office of Chief Financial Officer (OCFO)) requests related to
such monitoring, including requests related to desk reviews and/or site visits. The subrecipient
agrees to provide to NHDOJ and OJP all documentation necessary for NHDOJ and OJP to
complete its monitoring tasks, including documentation related to any subawards made under
this award. Further, the subrecipient agrees to abide by reasonable deadlines set by NHDOJ or
OJP for providing the requested documents. Failure to cooperate with OJP's monitoring activities
may result in actions that affect the recipient's DOJ awards, including, but not limited to:
withholdings and/or other restrictions on the recipient's access to award funds; referral to the
DOJ 010 for audit review; designation of the subrecipient as a DOJ High Risk grantee; or
termination of an award(s).

39. The subrecipient agrees to track and report to NHDOJ on its training and technical
assistance activities and deliverables progress using the guidance and format provided by BJA.

✓

40. The award subrecipient agrees to participate in a data collection process measuring
program outputs and outcomes. The data elements for this process will be outlined by the Office
of Justice Programs.

41. Confidentiality of data
The subrecipient (at any tier) must comply with all confidentiality requirements of 34 U.S.C.
I023land 28 C.F.R. Part 22 that are applicable to collection, use, and revelation of data or
information. The subrecipient further agrees, as a condition of award approval, to submit a
Privacy Certificate that is in accord with requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 22 and, in particular, 28
C.F.R. 22.23.

42. Copyright; Data rights
The subrecipient acknowledges that OJP reserves a royalty-free, non-exclusive, and irrevocable
license to reproduce, publish, or otherwise use, and authorize others to use (in whole or in part,
including in connection with derivative works), for Federal purposes: (I) any work subject to
copyright developed under an award or subaward (at any tier);
and (2) any rights of copyright to which a recipient or subrecipient (at any tier) purchases
ownership with Federal support.
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EXHIBIT C

The subreclpient acknowledges that OJP has the right to (1) obtain, reproduce, publish, or
otherwise use the data first produced under any such award or subaward; and (2) authorize others
to receive, reproduce, publish, or otherwise use such data for Federal purposes. "Data" includes
data as defined in Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR) provision 52.227-14 (Rights in Data -
General).

It is the responsibility of the recipient (and of each subrecipient (at any tier), if applicable) to
ensure that the provisions of this condition are included in any subaward (at any tier) under this
award.

The subrecipient has the responsibility to obtain from contractors, and subcontractors (if any) all
rights and data necessary to fulfill the recipient's obligations to the Government under this award.
If a proposed subrecipient, contractor, or subcontractor refuses to accept terms affording the
Government such rights, the subrecipient shall promptly bring such refusal to the attention of the
NHDOJ grant manager for the award and not proceed with the agreement in question without
further authorization from the NHDOJ and OJP program office.

43. Protection of human research subjects
The subrecipient (at any tier) must comply with the requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 46 and all
OJP policies and procedures regarding the protection of human research subjects, including
obtainment of Institutional Review Board approval, if appropriate, and subject informed consent.
Subrecipient integrity and performance matters: Requirement to report information on certain
civil, criminal, and administrative proceedings to SAM and FAPIIS. The subrecipient must
comply with any and all applicable requirements regarding reporting of information on civil,
criminal, and administrative proceedings connected with (or connected to the performance of)
either this OJP award or any other grant, cooperative agreement, or procurement contract from
the federal government. Under certain circumstances, recipients of OJP awards are required to
report information about such proceedings, through the federal System for Award Management
(known as "SAM"), to the designated federal integrity and performance system (currently,
"FAPIIS").
The details of recipient obligations regarding the required reporting (and updating) of
information on certain civil, criminal, and administrative proceedings to the federal designated
integrity and performance system (currently, "FAPIIS") within SAM are posted on the OJP web
site at https://ojp.gov/funding/FAPllS.htm (Award condition:
Recipient Integrity and Performance Matters, including Recipient Reporting to FAPIIS), and are
incorporated by reference here.

44. Recipient certifies that it does not promote, support, or advocate the legalization or
practice of prostitution, nor will it use grant funds or program match funds to promote, support,
or advocate the legalization or practice of prostitution.
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45. The subrecipient is authorized to incur obligations, expend, and draw down funds for
travel, lodging, and per diem costs only, in an amount not to exceed $5,000, for the sole purpose
of attending a required OJP conference associated with this grant award.
The subgrantee is not authorized to incur any additional obligations, or make any additional
expenditures or draw downs until the awarding agency and the Office of the Chief Financial
Officer (OCFO) has reviewed and approved the recipient's budget and budget narrative, and a
Grant Adjustment Notice (CAN) has been issued to remove.

46. The Subrecipient agency agrees that, should they employ a former member of the NH

Department of Justice (NHDOJ), that employee or their relative shall not perform work ori or

be billed to any federal or state subgrant or monetary award that the employee directly

managed or supervised while at the NHDOJ for the life of the subgrant without the express

approval of the NH DOJ. ,

47. Equipment purchased with these funds shall be listed by the Subrecipient on the

agency inventory. The inventory must include the item description, serial number, cost,

percentage of federal funds, and location. The Subrecipient agrees that the title to any

equipment purchased with the funds will revert back to the NHDOJ, Grants Management Unit,

when it is no longer being used for the program purposes for which it was acquired.

48. The Subrecipient agrees that if a financial audit of the agency is performed, whether it

be an audit under 2 CFR or not, the Subrecipient agrees to provide a copy of the audit and any

associated management letters to the NHDOJ, Grants Management Unit.

49. Subrecipients of federal funding from the NHDOJ are required to comply with all

federal regulations that relate to non-discrimination. These requirements are specified In

United States Code of Federal Regulation Title 28, sections 35, 38, 42 and 54. Individuals

who believe they may have been discriminated against by the NHDOJ or by an organization

that receives federal funding from the NHDOJ based on their race, color, national origin,

religion, sex, disability, age, sexual orientation or gender identity should print and complete a

Discrimination Complaint Form found at https://www.doi.nh.gov/grants-management/civil-

rights.htm.

50. The subgrantee, if a non-profit organization, agrees to make its financial statements

available online (either on the subgrantee's website, or the NHDOJ's, or another publicly

available website). Organizations that have Federal 501 (c) 3 tax status are considered in

compliance with this requirement, with no further action needed, to the extent that such
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organization flies IRS Form 990 or similar tax document (e.g., 990-EZ), as several sources

already provide searchable online databases of such financial statements.

51. The subgrantee, if a non-profit organization, must certify their non-profit status by

submitting a statement toNHDOJ: I) affirmatively asserting that the subrecipient is a non

profit organization and 2) indicating that the subgrantee has on file and available upon audit

one of the following:

A copy of the organization's 501 (c) 3 designation letter, or:

A letter from the State of NH stating that the subgrantee is a non-profit

organization operating within the state, or:

•  A copy of the sub-grantee's state certificate of incorporation that substantiates

its non- profit status

Subgrantees that are local non-profit affiliates of state or national non-profits should

also have a statement by the parent organization that the subgrantee is a local non-profit

affiliate.

52. Certification Regarding EEOP Required:
If required, within 30 days from the date of the award, the Subrecipient will submit for approval,
an acceptable Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP) as required by 28 CFR 42.301 et
seq. or a Certification Form to both the NH DOJ and the Office of Civil Rights, Office of Justice
Programs, US DOJ at 810 7th Street, NW, Washington, DC 20531. Failure to submit an
approved EEOP or Certification is a violation of the Program Guidelines and Conditions and
may result in suspension or termination of funding, until such time as the Subrecipient is in
compliance. The EEOP reporting tool and instructions can be found at::
httD://oiD.gov/about/ocr/faa eeop.htm

1 have read and understand all 52 ̂ecial provisions contained in this document:
^Vn a4 . Sc-l\c i-kU , .jW"

Name and Title of Auth^ized Representative

Signature / Date

Name and Address of Agency
New Hampshire Coalition Against

Domestic & Sexual Violence

PO Box 353

Concord, NH 03302-0353
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EXHIBIT D

EEOP Reporting

I, M ■ !v'-hc jid.if' {responsible officiQl], certify that^Vj}

^  Vlo Ur^c.€^recipient\ has completed the EEO reporting tool
certification

form at: https://ojp.gov/about/ocr/faq eeon.htm on / O ■- rp P) ^ [Date]

And that/fc^o'e .Prc^^ rre.ypo/7.y//?/g official] has completed the
EEOP f/

training at https://oip.gov/about/ocr/ocr-training-videos/video-ocr-training.htm on:

9' /'7- / 7- [date]

I further certify that:
Aj/f Ccn Z'-A/V) A^,^k<hOsA^j^i' 4 Se?a'n/ L/Ic^ [recipient] will comply

with applicable federal civil rights laws that prohibit discrimination in employment and in the
delivery of services.

Signature: Date:_UU±A
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Non-supplanting Certification

Supplanting defined

Federal funds must be used to supplement existing funds for program activities and must not

replace those funds that have been appropriated for the same purpose. Supplanting shall be the

subject of application review, as well as pre-award review, post-award monitoring, and audit. If

there is a potential presence of supplanting, the applicant or grantee will be required to supply

documentation dethonstrating that the reduction in non-Federal resources occurred for reasons

other than the receipt or expected receipt of Federal funds. For certain programs, a written

certification may be requested by the awarding agency or recipient agency stating that Federal

funds will not be used to supplant State or local

funds will not be used to supplant State or- local funds. See the OJP Financial Guide (Part II,

Chapter 3) ,

httD://www.oip.usdoi.gov/financialguide/part2/part2chap3.htm.

Supplanting and iob retention

A grantee may use federal funds to retain jobs that, without the use of the federal money, would

be lost. If the grantee is planning on using federal funds to retain jobs, it must be able to

substantiate that, without the funds, the jobs would be lost. Substantiation can be, but is not

limited to, one of the following forms: an official memorandum, official minutes of a county or

municipal board meeting or any documentation, that is usual and customarily produced when

making determinations about employment. The documentation must describe the terminated

positions and that the termination is because of lack of the availability of State or local funds.
V

iM^Applicant) certifies that any funds awarded

through grant number 2019-VT-BX-K024 shall be used to supplement existing funds for

program activities and will not replace (supplant) nonfederal funds that have been appropriated

for the purposes and goals of the grant.

(Applicant) understands that supplanting

violations may result in a range of penalties, including but not limited to suspension of future

funds under this program, suspension or debarment from federal grants, recoupment of monies

provided under this grant, and civil and/or criminal penalties.

itie: H' j
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EXHIBIT F

NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

ri»x

CERTIFICATIONS REGARDING LOBBYING; DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND
OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS; AND DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE

REQUIREMENTS

Applicants should refer to the regulations cited below to determine the certification to which they
are required to attest. Applicants should also review the instructions for certification included in
the regulations before completing this form. The certifications shall be treated as a material
representation of fact upon which reliance will be placed when the U.S. Department of Justice
("Department") determines to award the covered transaction, grant, or cooperative agreement.

1. LOBBYING

As required by 31 U.S.C. § 1352, as implemented by 28 C.F.R. Part 69, the Applicant certifies
and assures (to the extent applicable) the following:
(a) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
Applicant, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a
Member of Congress in connection with the making of any Federal grant, the entering into of
any cooperative agreement, or the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification
of any Federal grant or cooperative agreement;

(b) Ifthe Applicant's request for Federal funds is in excess of$l00,000, and any funds other
than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an officer
or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with this
Federal grant or cooperative agreement, the Applicant shall complete and submit Standard Form
- LLL, "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities" in accordance with its (and any DOJ awarding
agency's) instructions; and

(c) The Applicant shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
documents for all subgrants and procurement contracts (and their subcontracts) funded with
Federal award funds and shall ensure that any certifications or lobbying disclosures required of
recipients of such subgrants and procurement contracts (or their subcontractors) are made and
filed in accordance with 31 U.S.C. § 1352.

2. DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS
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EXHIBIT F

A. Pursuant to Department regulations on nonprocurement debarment and suspension
implemented at 2 C.F.R. Part 2867, and to other related requirements, the Applicant certifies,
with respect to prospective participants in a primary tier "covered transaction," as defined at 2
C.F.R. §. 2867.20(a), that neither it nor any of its principals— .
(a) is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, sentenced to a
denial.of Federal benefits by a State or Federal court, or voluntarily excluded from covered
transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b) has within a three-year period preceding this application been convicted of a felony criminal
violation under any Federal law, or been convicted or had a civil judgment rendered against it for

commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or
performing a piiblic (Federal, State, tribal, or local) transaction or private agreement or
transaction;

violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery,
bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, tax evasion or receiving
stolen property, making false claims, or obstruction of Justice, or commission of any offense
indicating a lack of business integrity or business honesty that seriously and directly affects its
(or its principals') present responsibility;

(c) is presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State, tribal, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph
(b) of this certification; and/or

(d) has within a three-year period preceding this application had one or more public transactions
(Federal, State, tribal, or local) terminated for cause or default.

B. Where the Applicant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, it shall
attach an explanation to this application. Where the Applicant or any of its principals was
convicted, within a three-year period preceding this application, of a felony criminal violation
under any Federal law, the Applicant also must disclose such felony criminal conviction in
writing to the Department (for OJP Applicants, to OJP at Ojpcompliancereporting@usdoj.gov;
for OVW Applicants, to OVW at OVW.GFMD@usdoj.gov; or for COPS Applicants, to COPS
at AskCOPSRC@usdoj.gov), unless such disclosure has already been made.

3. FEDERAL TAXES

A. If the Applicant is a corporation, it certifies either that (I) the corporation has no unpaid
Federal tax liability that has been assessed, for which all judicial and administrative
remedies have been exhausted or have lapsed, that is not being paid in a timely manner
pursuant to an agreement with the authority responsible for collecting the tax liability, or
(2) the corporation has provided written notice of such an unpaid tax liability (or
liabilities) to the Department (for OJP
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Applicants, to OJP at Ojpcompliancereporting@usdoj.gov; for OVW Applicants, to OVW at
OVW.GFMD@usdoj.gov; or for COPS Applicants, to COPS at AskCOPSR-C@usdoj.gov).

B. Where the Applicant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, it shall
attach an explanation to this application.

4. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE (GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS)

As required by the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, as implemented at 28 C.F.R. Part 83,
Subpart F, for grantees, as defined at 28 C.F.R. §§ 83.620 and 83.650;
A. The Applicant certifies and assures that it will, or will continue to, provide a drug-free
workplace by^

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in its workplace and
specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an on-going drug-free awareness program to inform employees about—

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

(2) The Applicant's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the
workplace;

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the award
be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the award, the employee will—

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of the employee's conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;

(e) Notifying the Department, in writing, within 10 calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title of any such
convicted employee to the Department, as follows:

Page 28 of 29 . ^
Subrecipient Initials ^

Date I^



EXHIBIT F

For COPS award recipients - COPS Office, 145 N Street, NE, Washington, DC, 20530;
For OJP and OVW award recipients - U.S. Departrhent of Justice, Office of Justice Programs,
ATTN:.Control Desk, 810 7th. Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20531.

Notice shall include the identification number(s) of each affected award;
(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted:

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, law
enforcement, or other appropriate agency; and

(g)Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (f).

If you are unable to sign this certification, you must attach an explanation to this
certification.

Lfri yi- Sctfcu^r-T
Name and Title of Head oEAgency

Signature Date

Name and Address of Agency

New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic & Sexual Violence

PO Box 353
Concord, NH 03302-0353
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state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERT[FICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify tliat NEW HAMPSHIRE

COALITION AGAINST DOMESTIC AND SEXUAL VIOLENCE is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered

to transact business in New Hampshire on April 30, 1981.1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of

State's oflice have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 63838

Certificate Number: 0004493360

Bo.

o

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 8lh day of April A.D. 2019.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

1, Lindsay Nadeau, Chair of the Board of Directors, do hereby certify that;
(Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence.
(Agency Name)

2. The following Is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on November 28. 2017:
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the Executive Director

(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the 14th day of November, 2019.
(Date Contract Signed) ,

4. Lyn M. Schollett_ is the duly elected _Executive Director,
(Name of Contract Signatory)

of the Agency.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of Merrimack

(Title of Contract Signatory)

orthe Elecfe r) Chair, NHCADSV

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _14_ day of _November. 2019 .

By Lindsay Nadeau.
(NaiTie-of Elected Officer of the Agency)

(Notary Public/Justic^of the Pea8e)

(NCTARr SEAL)

Commission Expires: _9-18-2024

Certificate of Vote Without Seal



A.CORd' CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE {MM®OfrYYY)

10/23/2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policylles) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsementls).
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Concord, New Hampshire

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements ofNew Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic
and Sexual Violence (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of
June 30, 2019 and the related statement of activities and changes in net assets, functional expenses, and
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatemenl, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

' An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position ofNew Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence as of June 30, 2019 and the
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.



Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's 2018
financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in
our report dated October 19, 2018. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial
statements from which it has been derived.

Other Matters

Other information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and, is not a required part of the financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial
statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 4, 2019,
on our consideration of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope
of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and
not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering New Hampshire
Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

fey

Rowley & Associates, P.C.
Concord, New Hampshire
October 4, 2019
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Statement of Financial Position

June 30, 2019 With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2018

See Independent Auditors' Report

Net Assets Net AjsseLs

( Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions 2019 2018

ASSETS

CVRRF.NT ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents S 364,045 $ 46,760 S 410,805 S 557,853

Grants Receivable 1,881,645 - 1,881,645 1,527,457

Prepaid Expenses 19,916 - . 19,916 20,421

Total Current Assets 2,265,606 46,760 2,312,366 2,103,731

PROPERTY AND EOIJIPMENT

Land - - - 52,143

Building - - - 267,592

Equipment 14,654
-

14,654 114,179

Building and Leasehold Improvements 27,719 - 27,719 53,455

42.373 - 42,373 487.369

Less Accumulated Depreciation (9,494) - (9,494) (237,534)

Total Property and Equipment, Net 32,879 - 32,879 249.835

LONG-TERM ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents Designated

for Long-Term Investment 350,655 - '  350,655 -

Security Deposit 6,213 - 6.213 6.213

Total Long-Term Assets 356,868 - 356,868 6.213

Total Assets $ 2,655,353 $ 46,760 S 2,702.113 s 2,361,779

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES -

Current Portion of Long-Term Debt S - S - $ - $ 6,354

Accounts Payable 1,587,493 - 1,587,493 1,230,380

Accrued Expenses 103,664 - 103.664 105.157

Federal Taxes Payable 1,428 1,428 -

Total Current Liabilities 1,692,585 - 1,692,585 1,341,891

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-Term Dcbt,.Net of Current Portion - - 31,508

NET ASSETS

Without Donor Rcslirction 962,768 962,768 949,400

With Donor Restriction - 46,760 46,760 38,980

Total Net Assets 962,768 46,760 1,009,528 988.380

Total Liabilities and Net Assets s 2,655,353 $ 46,760 s 2,702,113 s 2,361,779

Notes to Financial Statements
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended June 30, 2019, With Comparitive Totals for Year Ended June 30, 2018

See Independent Auditors' Report

Net Assets Net Assets

Without Donor With Donor

Restriction Restriction 2019 2018

SUPPORT AND REVENUE

Grant Revenue $ 7,493,193 $  87,220 $ 7,580,413 $ 6,388,663

Contributions 204,789 - 204,789 233,980

Donated Services 106,680 - 106,680 129,417

Gain on Sale of Property and Equipment 19,018 - 19,018 -

Miscellaneous Income 36,182 . 36,182 23.338

Total Support and Revenue 7,859,862 87,220 7,947,082 6,775,398

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS

Net Assets Released from Donor Imposed Restriction 79,440 (79,440) - ■

EXPENSES

Program Services 7,783,527 ■ 7,783,527 6,653,578

Management and General 112,718 ■ 112,718 112,249

Fundraising 29,689 - 29,689 20,707

Total expenses 7,925,934 7,925,934 6,786,534

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS 13,368 7,780 21,148 (1 1,136)

NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 949,400 38,980 988,380 999,516

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR $  962.768 $  46.760 $  1,009.528 $  988,380.

Notes to Financial Statements
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended June 30, 2019

With Comparative Totals for Year Ended June 30, 2018

See Independent Auditors' Report

Program

Services

Management &

General Fundraising

Total

2019

Total

2018

Salaries' $  971,527 $  66,056 $ 17,622 $  1,055,205 $  1,114,419

Payroll taxes 78,304 5,324 1,420 85,048 89,530

Health and Dental Insurance 91,266 6,205 1,655 99,126 86,950

Other Employee Benefits 31,571 2,147 572 34,290 37,090

Professional Services 126,638 8,610 2,297 137,545 179,140

Contract/Grant Services 5,749,544 - - 5,749,544 4,707,965

Survivor Grants 253,628 - - 253,628 109,630

Memberships 3,985 271 72 4,328 3,559

Publications 1,186 8) 21 1,288 1,116 .

Advertising/Public Awareness 3,404 231 62 3,697 401

Copying 3,132 213 57 3,402 4,642

Office Supplies 38,424 2,612 697 41,733 48,452

Postage 5,389 366 98 5,853 4,670

Printing 7,264 494 132 7,890 11,573

Equipment &. Moving 3,150 214 57 3,421 12,952

Maintenance & Repair 42,204 2,870 766 45,840 34,334

Rent Expense 76,211 5,182 1,382 82,775 23,599

Interest 474 32 9 515 2,054

Parking 6,589 448 120 7,157 4,094

Insurance 7,547 513 137 8,197 12,104

PMC Partial Reimbursement 1,335 91 24 1,450 1,300

StaIT Development 23,713 1,612 430 25,755 17,399

Travel 47,478 3,228 861 51,567 55,791

Telephone 46,846 3,185 850 50,881 37,607

Utilities 346 24 6 376 8,950

Miscellaneous - - - - 1,410

AVAP Miscellaneous Expense 59,891 - - 59,891 63,181

AVAP Member Training/Education 4,621 • •- 4,621 6,376

Direct Training 48,589 - - 48,589 47,172

Community Education 30,441 - - 30,441 35,878

Depreciation Expense 6,982 475 127 7,584 10,773

Accounting Fees 11,848 806 215 12,869 12,423

Federal Taxes - 1,428 - 1,428 -

Total Expenses $  7,783,527 $  112,718 S 29,689 $  7,925,934 S  6,786,534

Notes to Financial Staiemenls
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

See Independent Auditors' Report

2019 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets $ 21,148 . $ (11,136)

Adjustments to Reconcile Increase in Net Assets to Net Cash

Provided by Operating Activities

Depreciation 7,584 10,773

Gain on Sale of Property and Equipment (19,018)

(Increase) Decrease in Operating Assets:

Grants Receivable (354,188) (210,824)

Prepaid Expenses 505 (8,905)

Security Deposit - (6,213)

Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:

Accounts Payable 357,113 115,091

Accrued Expenses (1,493) 20,654

Federal Taxes Payable 1,428 ^
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITES 13,079 (90,560)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net Proceeds on Sale of Property and Equipment 228,390

Acquisition of Property and Equipment r (39,275)
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 228,390 (39,275)"

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of Long-Temi Debt (37,862) (6,045)

NET CASH USED BY FINANCING ACTIVITES (37,862) (6,045)

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 203,607 (135,880)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 557,853 693,733

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, AT END OF YEAR $ 761,460 $ 557,853

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid during the year for:

Interest $ 515 $ 2,054

Donated Services $ 106,680 $ 129,417

Notes to Financial Statements
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements

Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018-

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Activities

The Coalition is a private, non-profit, tax-exempt organization committed to ending domestic and sexual
violence. The Coalition serves as a coordinating organization for its 13 member agency crisis centers that
In turn provide services to survivors of sexual assault, domestic violence, human trafficking, and stalking.
Twelve of the Coalition's member agencies are autonomous, private, non-profit organizations with their
own mission, structure, and board of directors; one is a university-based program. The Coalition receives
97% of its funding from federal and state agencies and less than 1 % from private fundraising.

The Vision of the Coalition is:

All New Hampshire communities provide safety for every person.

The Mission of the Coalition is:

TTie New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence creates safe and just communities
through advocacy, prevention and empowerment of anyone affected by sexual violence, domestic violence
and stalking.

This mission is accomplished by the Coalition, which includes 13 independent community-based member
programs, a board of directors and a central staff working together to:

•  Influence public policy on the local, state and national levels;
•  Ensure that quality services are provided to victims;
•  Promote the accountability of societal systems and communities for their responses to sexual

violence, domestic violence and stalking;
•  Prevent violence and abuse before they occur.

To elaborate on the above mission and vision statements, the Coalition supports member agency staff with
specialized training, resources and technical assistance; convenes member agency staff to facilitate shared
learning and peer support; and collects and disseminates best practices and current information. The
Coalition supports the development of new services and serves as a statewide clearinghouse and
coordinating organization related to victim services. It administers state and federal contracts that provide
funding for its member programs.

Coalition staff provide education and training to court and law enforcement officials and attorneys, and
collaborate with legal assistance organizations that provide lawyers for survivors and their families.
Coalition staff work to promote cross-system collaboration with child protective services and child
advocacy centers to assure safety for children exposed to or who have experienced domestic and sexual
violence, and for their parents. Coalition staff participate on numerous statewide boards and commissions
to advocate for effective responses to victims.

The Coalition's Public Affairs staff work closely with other advocacy groups, legislators and survivors to
draft legislation, organize testimony, and advocate for policy changes throughout the legislative
session. The Coalition either takes an active role in or tracks close to 150 bills each legislative
session. These bills address a wide range of issues including domestic and sexual violence; stalking; family
law; divorce and child custody/visitation/support; reproductive rights; law enforcement and courts; privacy
and personal information; healthcare; and economic justice.

Coalition staff also provide resources and sources for responsible news media and reporting. Coalition staff
create and distribute statewide communications materials to raise awareness about sexual assault, domestic

violence, prevention and services available to victims.
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements

Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued^

\

Nature of Activities (Continued)

The Coalition plays a key leadership role in efforts to prevent domestic and sexual violence throughout
New Hampshire. Coalition staff collaborate with state and local entities to support policies and practices to
advance effective prevention education. Coalition staff are proactive in educating the-public about the
causes and effects of domestic and sexual violence and stalking and as well as services available across the
state. The Coalition has sponsored research on the prevalence of violence in New Hampshire.

The Coalition also manages several specific programs to assist its member crisis centers and the public.
The following are three distinct programs that directly affect survivors of domestic violence, sexual
violence and stalking:

AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program (AVAP)

The AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program (AVAP) founded in 1994 is a multi-agency collaboration
housed by the Coalition that ensures that direct services are available to victims of domestic and sexual
violence and stalking throughout New Hampshire. AVAP is part of AmeriCorps, a national service
program that offers opportunities to Americans who are interested in rhaking a substantial commitment to
serve their country through national service.

Members of the AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program are placed throughout New Hampshire at member
agencies, police departments, prosecutor offices, the New Hampshire Department of Corrections, and child
advocacy centers to offer support and information to victims of domestic and sexual violence and
stalking. Currently, AVAP members are focusing their advocacy efforts on providing financial literacy and
housing services to survivors of domestic violence, sexual assault, and stalking. AVAP members are
trained in the AllState Foundation's Moving Ahead through Financial Management curriculum which they
use in one-on-one sessions and in financial literacy workshops focused on an array of topics from basic
budgeting to checking a credit report. Members also provide information and facilitate referrals to local
financial and housing services.

Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner (SANE) Program

A Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner (SANE) is a Registered Nurse who has been specially trained to provide
comprehensive care to sexual assault survivors, who demonstrates competency in conducting
medical/forensic examinations and who has the ability to be a witness in a sexual assault prosecution.
Coalition staff are responsible for training and working with registered SANEs and medical professionals
across the state to ensure that sexual assault victims receive consistent and professional care during forensic
exams.

The Family Violence Prevention Specialist Program

Research shows a high correlation (40-60%) between the perpetration of domestic violence and the
perpetration of child abuse and neglect in the same family. The Family Violence Prevention Specialist
Program was built on the principle that abused and neglected children are best served when they can remain
in a safe household with a non-violent parent.



New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements

Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

The Family Violence Prevention Specialist program began in 1998 as a coordinated effort between the
Coalition and the Division for Children, Youth, and Families (DCYF). Family Violence Prevention
Specialists (FVPSs) are employed by local member agencies of the Coalition, and are cp-located at local
DCYF District Offices. The FVPSs are a source of assistance and training to child protective service
workers while providing advocacy services to victims of domestic violence involved with DCYF. This
program results in more effective assistance to victims through the development of interventions that
recognize the adult victim's need for support and advocacy in order to improve safety outcomes for
children.

Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Coalition have been prepared in conformity with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) as applied to not-for-profits. The Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing accounting and financial reporting principles
for not-for-profits. The more significant of the FASB's generally accepted accounting principles applicable
to the Coalition, and the Coalition's conformity with such principles, are described below. These
disclosures are an integral part of the Coalition's financial statements.

Basis of Presentation

The Coalition reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to two classes of
net assets: net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor, restrictions.

Net assets without donor restrictions - These net assets generally result from revenues generated by
receiving contributions that have no donor restrictions, providing services, and receiving interest from
operating investments, less expenses incurred in providing program-related services raising
contributions, and performing administrative functions.

Net assets with donor restrictions - These net assets result from gifts of cash and other assets that are
received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets, either temporarily or
permanently, until the donor restriction expires, that is until the stipulated time restriction ends or the.
purpose of the restriction is accomplished, the net assets are restricted.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Coalition have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and
accordingly reflect all significant receivables, payables and other liabilities.

Grants Receivable and Promises to Give ^

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Coalition that is, in substance,
unconditional. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in net assets without
donor restriction if the restrictions expire in the fiscal year in which the contributions are recognized. All
other dpnor-restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restriction. When a
restriction expires, net assets with donor restriction are reclassified to net assets without donor restriction.

-9-



New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements

Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, fcontlnued)

Contributed Services

During the years ended June 30,2019 and 2018, the value of contributed services relating to printing,
community education, direct training and professional fees were $ 106,680 and $ 129,4! 7, respectively.
Contributions received are recorded as with or without donor restricted support depending on the existence
or nature of any donor restrictions.

In addition, many individuals volunteer their time and perform a variety of tasks that assist the Coalition;
these amounts have not been recognized in the accompanying statement of activities because the criterion
for recognition of such volunteer effort is that services must be specialized skills, which would be
purchased if not donated.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Compensated Absences

Employees of the Coalition are entitled to paid vacation depending on job classification, length of services,
and other factors. The statement of financial position reflects accrued vacation earned, but unpaid as of
June 30, 20 i 9 and 2018 in the amounts of $63,255 and $63,017, respectively.

Allocation of Expenses

The Coalition allocates expenses among program services, management and general, and fundraising based
on direct costs and other factors, including space utilization and time.

Property and Equipment

It is the Coalition's policy to capitalize property and equipment over $2,500 and all expenditures for
repairs, maintenance, renewals and betterments that prolong the useful lives of assets. Lesser amounts are
expensed. Purchased property and equipment is capitalized at cost. Donations of property and equipment
are recorded as contributions at their estimated fair value. Such donations are reported as contributions
without donor restriction unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific purpose. Assets
donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and contributions of cash that must be used to acquire
property and equipment are reported as restricted contributions. Absent donor stipulations regarding how
long those donated assets must be maintained, the Coalition reports expiration of donor restrictions when
the donated or acquired assets are placed in service as instructed by the donor. The Coalition reclassifles net
assets with donor restriction to net assets without donor restriction at that time. Property and equipment are
depreciated using the straight-line method. The ranges of useful lives are as follows:

Building and Improvements 39 Years
Equipment 3-7 Years

Depreciation expense recorded by the Coalition for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 was $7,735 and
$10,773, respectively.
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements

Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, ̂continued)

Income taxes

The Coalition has been notified by the Internal Revenue Service that it is exempt from federal income tax
under Section 501 (c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Coalition is further classified as an
organization that is not a private foundation under Section 509(a)(3) of the Code. The most significant tax -
positions of the Coalition are its assertion that it is exempt from income taxes and its determination of
whether any amounts are subject to unrelated business tax (UBIT). The Coalition follows guidance of
Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 740, Accounting for Income Taxes, related to uncertain income
taxes, which prescribes a threshold of more likely than not for recognition of tax positions taken or expected
to be taken in a tax return.

All significant tax positions have been considered by management. Based on the results of this evaluation it
was determined that the Coalition has unrelated business,income in accordance with The Tax Cuts and Jobs

Act (TCJA) provisions specific to tax-exempt organizations beginning in 2018. The TCJA provides that
unrelated business income includes expenses paid or incurred for qualified transportation fringe benefits
such as the parking benefits provided to employees of the Coalition. UBIT related to parking benefits was
$1,428 for the year ended June 30, 2019.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Coalition considers ail highly liquid investments (short-
term investments such as certificates of deposits and money market accounts) with an initial maturity of
three months or less to be cash equivalents. There were no cash equivalents as of June 30, 2019 and 2018.

Segregation of Accounts

Under Title I, New Hampshire, The State and Its Government, Chapter 15 Lobbyist Section 15:1-a, the
Coalition is required to physically and financially separate state funds from any non-state funds that may be
used for the purposes of lobbying or attempting to influence legislation, participate in political activity, or
contribute funds to any entity engaged in these activities. The Coalition has established and maintains a
separate bank account for this purpose. The account balances were S2,061 and $4,634 at June 30, 2019 and
2018, respectively.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Coalition maintains cash balances in several accounts at local banks. These accounts are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. At various times throughout the year, the Coalition
may have cash balances at the financial institution that exceeds the insured amount. Management does not
believe this concentration of cash results in a high level of risk for the Coalition. At June 30, 2019 and 2018
the Coalition had uninsured cash balances of $0 and $174,712, respectively.

Subsequent Event

Management has evaluated subsequent events through October 4, 2019, the date on which the financial
statements were available to be issued to determine if any are of such significance to require disclosure.
It has been determined that no other subsequent events matching this criterion occurred during this period.
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements

Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, fcontinucdl

Comparative Financial Information

The financial statements iriclude certain prior-year summarized comparative information in lota! but not by
net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation In
conformity with generally accepted accounting,principles. Accordingly, such information should be read in
conjunction with the Coalition's financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2018, from which the
summarized information was derived.

Financial Instruments

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, grants receivable, prepaid expenses, accounts payable and
accrued expenses are stated at carrying cost at June 30, 2019 and 2018, which approximates fair value due
to the relatively short maturity of these instruments.

Reclassifications

Certain financial statement and note information from the prior year financial statements has been
reclassified to conform with current year presentation format.

New Accounting Pronouncement

During the year ended June 30, 2019, the Coalition adopted the requirements of the Financial Accounting
Standards Board's Accounting Standards Update No. 2016- 14—Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958):
Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities (ASU 2016- 14). This Update addresses the
complexity and understandability of net asset classification, deficiencies in information about liquidity and
availability of resources, and the lack of consistency in the type of information provided about expenses and
investment return between not-for-profit entities. A key change required by ASU 2016-14 is the net asset
classes used in these financial statements. Amounts previously reported as unrestricted net assets are now
reported as net assets without donor restrictions and amounts previously reported as temporarily restricted
net assets and permanently restricted net assets are now reported as net assets with donor restrictions.

The accompanying information from the 2018 financial statements has been restated to conform to the 2019
presentation and disclosure requirements of ASU 2016-14.

NOTE B - NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions consist of funds received by the Coalition, restricted as to use or time. The
restrictions are considered to expire when payments are made. As of June 30, 2019 and 2018 respectively,
the net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purpose:

2019 2018

NH Charitable Foundation $ 20,310 $ 24,282
Endowment for Health 5,500

Allstate 20,950 14,311

Verizon Respect Week : 387
Total 5; 46.760 S 38.980
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements

Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

NOTE C - LONG-TERM NOTES

As of June 30, 2019 and 2018, long-term debt consists of the following:

2019 2018

Mortgage Note, Payable to Merrimack
County Savings Bank, Interest at 4.99%,
with Monthly Payments of S675 including
Principal and Interest. Paid in full August 2019. $ - $ 37,862
Less Current Portion ; 6.354
Total Long Term Debt $ £ 31.508

NOTE D - LINE OF CREDIT

The Coalition has a one-year SI 50,000 revolving line of credit agreement with Merrimack County Savings
Bank. The credit line matures on May 20, 2020 and automatically renews annually. Interest is staled at the
Wall Street Journal prime rate plus .5%, which resulted in interest rales of 5.75% and 5.50% as of June 30,
2019 and 2018, respectively. The line of credit is secured by all business assets. There were no borrowings
against the line as of June 30, 2019 and 2018.

NOTE E - DESCRIPTION OF LEASING ARRANGEMENTS

The Coalition presently leases office equipment under short-term operating lease agreements.

The Coalition entered a ten-year lease agreement for office space and parking spaces on March 1, 2018,
expiring in 2028. Annual rent is $74,556 with 4% annual escalations each year on the anniversary of the

lease term. Annual parking is $7,800 with no more than 2% annual increases. The future minimum lease
payments on this agreement as of June 30 are:

2020 $ 86,372
2021 89,515

2022 92,784

2023 96,183

2024 99,719

Thereafter 397.755

Total

Rent expense related to the lease was $82,777 and $23,599 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018
respectively. Parking expense of $7,800 and $2,600 is included in travel expense for the years ended June
30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

NOTE F - PENSION PLAN

The Coalition has a 403(b) savings plan for the benefit of its employees. The plan covers substantially all
employees after one year of service. During their budgeting process, the Board of Directors determines the
amount to be contributed annually. Employer contributions for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018
totaled $22,960 and $21,572, respectively.
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

NOTE G - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

In accordance with FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, the Coalition is required to
disclose certain information about its financial assets and liabilities. Fair values of assets measured on a

recurring basis at June 30 were as follows:

Significant Other
Observable Inputs

2019 Fair Value ("Level 2")

Grants Receivable

2018

Grants Receivable Sl.527.457 $1.527.457

Tht fair value of grants receivable are estimated at the present value of expected future cash flows.

NOTE H - BOARD DESIGNATED NET ASSETS

The Coalition has net assets designated for various future needs. These funds are comprised of the
following as of June 30:

2019 2018 •

Fund for Grace $ 72,386 $ 85,193
Operating Reserve 148.665 148.665

$  233.858

NOTE I - LIQUIDITY & AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Coalition has a policy to structure its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures,
liabilities and other obligations come due. The Coalition's primary source of support is grants. That support
is held for the purpose of supporting the Coalition's budget. The Coalition had the following financial
assets that could be readily made available within one year to fund expenses without limitations:

2019 2018

Cash and Cash Equivalents S 410,805 $ 57,853
Grants Receivable, net of

Grants Payable 302,985 306,951

Less Amounts:

With Donor Imposed Restriction ("46.7601 ("38.9801
$ 667.030 $ 825.824
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ROWLEY & ASSOCIATES, P.C.
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CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03301

TELEPHONE (603) 228-5400
FAX #(603) 226-3532 MEMBER OFTHE PRIVATE

COMPANIES PRACTICE SECTION

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL

.  STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors

New Hampshire Coalition

Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Concord, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial
position as of June 30, 2019, and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets and cash flows
for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated October 4, 2019.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to
determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence's intemaLcontrol.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements, on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described ih the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and
Sexual Violence's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with
which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. .

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization's internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this
communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Rowley & Associates, P.C.

Concord, New Hampshire
October 4, 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM

AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors

New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Concord, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's compliance with the
types of compliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct
and material effect on each ofNew Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's major
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2019. New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions
of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence's major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and
the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those
standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence about New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence's compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence complied, in all material
respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material
effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2019.
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence is responsible for
establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above, in planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered New
Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control over compliance with the
types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in" accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control over
compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing, their assigned

functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Rowley & Associates, P.C.
Concord, New Hampshire
October 4, 2019
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violenee
Schedule of Findings and Question Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2019

SECTION 1 - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

1. The auditor's report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial statements of the New

Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence were prepared in accordance with GAAP.

2. No reportable conditions relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the Independent
Auditor's Report. No material weaknesses are reported.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence, which would be required to be reported in accordance with Government

Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are reported in the .
Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over
Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No Material weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditor's report on compliance for the major federal award programs for New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs.

6. Audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR section 200.516(a) are reported
in this Schedule.

7. The programs tested as a major programs were:

Victims of Crime Act 16.575

Family Violence Prevention Service Act 93.556

8. The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B Programs was: $750,000.

9. The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence was determined to be a low-risk
auditee.

SECTION II - FINDINGS: FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

No matters were reported.

SECTION III - FINDINGS AND OUESTIONED COSTS: FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS

AUDIT

No matters were reported.
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Pass-Through

Federal Entity Passed

CFDA Identifying Through to Federal

Program Title Number Number Subrecipients Expenditures

11.S. Deoartment of Justice:

Direct Program - Violence Against Women Act of 2000 16.556 - 243,378

Pass-Through Programs from State of NH Department of Justice:

VAWA, SASP 16.017 2019SASP01 5,709 5,709

VAWA, SASP 16.017 20I8SASP01 338,025 338,025

VAWA, SAJI 16.017 20I6SAJ101 - 120

VOCA, PMC Subcontracts 16.575 2019VOC3I 1,988,498 1,988,498

VOCA, Training 16.575 20I9VOC31 - 14,035

VOCA, SA 16.575 20I8VOC49 125,603 286,611

VOCA, CA 16.575 2018VOC47 - 41,936

VOCA, DV 16.575 2018VOC48 465,879 475,458

VOCA, Supplemental 16.575 2019VOC59 252,464 272,322

VOCA, 16.575 20I8VOC31 - 192,576

VAWA, STOP 16.588 2018W090 - 78,075

VAWA, STOP 16.588 2019W090 - 79,517

Total Pass-Through Programs 3,176,178 3,772,882

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 3,176,178 4,016,260

U.S. Deoartment of Health and Human Ser\'ice.s:

Direct Program - Family Violence Prevention Ser\'ices Act 93.591 - 207,706

Direct Program - Family Violence Prevention Ser\'ices Act 93.591 - 77,569

Pass-Through Programs from State ofNH Department of HHS:

Sexual Violence Prevention 93.136 102-500731 229,457 322,427

Family Violence Prevention Services Act 93.671 I555I0B00I 868,580 888,580

Total Pass-Through Programs 1,098,037 1,211,007

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES 1,098,037 1,496,282

Comoralion for National & Communitv Services:

Pass-Through from Volunteer NH!

AmeriCorps Victim Assist Program 94.006 - 219,540

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS $ 4,274,215 S 5,732,082
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2019

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal grant
activity of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence under programs of the federal
government for the year ended June 30, 2019. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance
with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code ofFederal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because
the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in
net assets, or cash flows of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence.

NOTE B - SUMIMARV OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, Cost.
Principles for Non-profit Organizations, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are
limited as to reimbursement.

2. Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available.

NOTE C - SUBRECIPIENTS

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence provide federal awards to
subrecipients as follows:

Program Title Federal CFDA # Amount Provided

Sexual Assault Services Program 16.017 $ 343,734

Victims of Crime Act 16.575 2,832,444

Sexual Violence Prevention 93.136 229,457

Family Violence Prevention Services Act 93.671 868.580

■'S4.274.2I5

NOTE D - INDIRECT COST RATE

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence has not elected to use the 10% de
minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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Key Personnel

Key Employee for the project is the Project director. She has not started her position at
NHCADSV. The salary is anticipated to be $49,900.

The project director job description is not complete. Description of duties is attached and
finalized job description will be forthcoming when the position starts in January 2020.



Rebecca S. Ayling

Education

Master of Social Work

University of New Hampshire, School of Social Work, Durham, New Hampshire 2007-2008
University of Maryland, Baltimore, Maryland 2006-2007

Bachelors of Science in Psychology 2001-2006
Supporting Program: International Development
Minor: Leadership

North Central University, Minnesota

TEFLCertlflcate (120 Hour Course) November 2015
Samui TEFL, Thailand

Employment

Position: Project Director August 2017-present
NH Human Trafficking Collaborative Task Force
New Hampshire

This is a grant-based position and I am responsible for facilitating the state's Task Force, managing the grant, strategizing
with key partners on the state's collaborative response to combatting human trafficking, strategizing with key partners to
effectuate grant goals, and execute portions of the grant alongside law enforcement and victim service providers. This
role also entails:

•  Developing and maintaining strategy for a statewide response to human trafficking
•  Training key partners, professionals and community members across the state of New Hampshire
•  Completing grant reports and working with the program evaluator to gather data and assess the work being

done to respond to trafficking in New Hampshire

•  Facilitating the statewide Task Force, committees and project groups
•  Guest lecturing at universities (UNH, Plymouth State University, UNE)

Position: Manager, Human Trafficking Response Program August 2017-present
Waypoint

Manchester, NH

This position is an extension of the Senior Intensive Case Manager position outlined below with the advanced
responsibilities of supervising two intensive case managers providing victim services to those who have experienced
human trafficking. This can include program development, assessment and problem solving; ongoing professional
development for the case managers as well as annual reviews; and ad hoc support of clients to support case managers or
fill in as needed.

Position: Senior Intensive Case Manager February 2017-August
2017

Waypoint (formerly Child and Family Services of NH)
Manchester, NH

During the initial months, responsibilities were slightly different from normal (see below). These included:
•  Designing and developing policies and procedures for this new program;
•  In cooperation with stakeholders, developing a realistic and strategic plan to ensure victims of human trafficking

are provided with a comprehensive, safe, consistent service, driven and directed by them as individuals and their
specific needs;

•  Building relationships with professionals across NH to understand how they interface with vulnerable
populations, provide education on human trafficking and increase awareness of this new program to ensure all
those experiencing trafficking have access to services provided through the grant; and

•  Providing basic Human Trafficking training in partnership with other professionals around the state.
Primary, ongoing responsibilities include:



Position: Intensive Family Support Social Worker September 2010 - August
2012 ^ ^
West Sussex County Council Children's Services * f
Worthing, England ' •
Responsibilities: '

•  Develop care plans for each child to address their needs and the family's needs;
•  Support families in achieving the goals outlined In the plans;
•  Work with adolescents to develop their independent living skills as they prepare for independence and to offer

.opportunities for positive social interactions and community involvement;
.  • Facilitate therapeutic activities for children;

•  Complete ongoing family and parenting safety assessments;
•  Conduct interventions prior to and during possible disruptions in a child's out of home placement;
•  Engage extended family members in care planning and efforts to reunify families; and
•  Attend and participate In care (legal) proceedings throughout the duration of a case.

Position: Child Protection Services Worker II August 2008 - August

2010

Division for Children, Youth & Families

Salem, New Hampshire

Responsibilities:

•  As above.



Project Director Tasks/Responsibilities

Identify Key Stakeholders across NH
o Determine (with Core Partners and TF) key target groups of professionals and

community leaders

o Meet with identified individuals/agencies to introduce the work of the Task Force, TFO
and Waypoint Services

o Offer/provide training (connect with Speakers from TF) - on human trafficking
identification and response

Facilitation of the Core Team Meetings (monthly)
o Maintain contact/relationships with Core Partners
o Prepare the agenda in partnership with the US Attorney's Office
o Facilitate monthly Core Team meetings

o Address follow up tasks (and hold others accountable to tasks/timelines)
Facilitation of the Task Force Meetings (monthly)

o Maintain contact with TF partners and new members, building supportive relationships
o Problem Solve/Mediate concerns

o Prepare meeting agenda, including organizing training/speakers
o Facilitate monthly Task Force meetings
o Address follow up tasks (and hold others accountable to tasks/timelines)
o Train TF members to ensure ongoing professional development is provided
o Orient new TF members

Committees and Work Groups

o Support the ongoing work of committees and chairs
o Chair committees/work groups as needed
o Prepare potential chairs for future leadership (ensuring that we always have a chair in

training for committees)

o Ensure each committee have clear goals and objectives which they are making progress
towards

o Navigate interpersonal challenges and committee overlap (division of responsibilities and
when^partnership is needed)

o Ensure/review all outgoing training, outreach event/content, documents, media/PR and
reports for accuracy and appropriateness

o Make Core Partners aware of any outgoing content (as listed above) and request their
review and approval as needed

o This information is relevant to the following groups:
■  Law Enforcement Committee - Chair; Mike Posanka

■  Victim Services Committee - Chair: Joelyn Drennan

■  Training Committee - Chair: Donna Plourde
■  Community Engagement Committee — Chairs: Alan Robichaud & Bryan Bessette
■  Ad hoc work groups



•  Outreach in the community to identify individuals who have been trafficked and offer services and support;
•  Increase awareness of services available;

•  Meet one-on-one with individuals needing services to develop a tailored service plan to address their needs and
then execute that plan alongside the individual;

•  Supervise an MSW level case manager; and

•  Participate in various state level meetings to address different aspects of human trafficking/as both a participant
and at times a chair or co-chair.

Position: Case Manager December 2015-pctober 2016
NIghtllght International, Trafficking in Persons Team
Bangkok, Thailand

Nightlight International Is an international anti-trafficking organization. In Thailand the Trafficking in Persons team serves
women from around the world who have been trafficked to Thailand and need assistance to return home safely.
Responsibilities:

•  Assist in identifying women who have been trafficked both on the street and in Immigration Detention;
•  Provide 1:1 care and support for women identified as trafficked, including brief trauma care, assisting with

medical assessment and accessing care for identified medical needs, identifying the best way for women to
safely return home, and assisting them in re-establishing contact with family and support networks in their home
country;

•  Seek partners and support networks in countries where women commonly come from, which can support
trafficked women when they return home. Support is needed for reintegration, job/skills training, trauma

- counselling and recovery, as well as resettling into their family, community and work; and
•  Seek partnerships with government agencies In Thailand to support the legal process of women leaving Thailand.

Position: Contracting Social Worker (May 2013-October 2015)
As a contracting social worker I held various social work leadership roles throughout three counties in southern England.
In my last rote, during this period, I supervised five farriily support workers overseeing their caseloads, providing regular
supervision and helping them work towards goals sent in their personal development plan.

i

Senior Social Work Practitioner November 2014 - October 2015

Early Help/Think Family Team, West Sussex County Council Children's Services, England
I supervised five support workers and worked directly with five families who needed support for their children's
additional needs and/or difficult behaviors. In the supervision element of my role, I met monthly to provide
supervision arid address any learning or development needs for each individual.

Child In Need Social Worker February 2014 - November 2014
Brighton and Hove City Council, England
I worked closely with families where abuse or neglect have been identified. I met regularly with the children to
get to know them and their needs, understand their view on their situation; assess parents' progress, risk factors,
protective factors and support system, while helping them begin to make the changes needed. When necessary
this also included a court process and writing for court to outline safety concerns/risks to the child, as well as
progress parents made in relation to the safety concerns.

Referral and Assessment Social Worker August 2013 - February 2014
West Sussex Courity Council Children's Services, England
I was tasked with assessing new referrals of abuse, neglect, domestic violence, emotional harm or sexual harm.
In order to do this, I meet one on one with the children and their parents and spoke to professionals involved
with the family. I was responsible for analyzing this information and providing management with a
recommendation. This role enabled me to have brief but meaningful interactions with many families who were
often at a point of crisis or difficulty.

Senior Social Worker May-July 2013

London Borough of Croydon Children's Services, England
My role was to supervise ongoing cases in which families were in court due to charges of abuse and or neglect
and in the process of working to have their children returned to their care. I was identified as the child's social
worker and supported the child through this process.



Evaluation

o Support data collection by the victim services and law enforcement (funded) partners
Ensure that the TF and funded partners are collecting and reporting on the right data
Work with the evaliiator regarding what data is being collected, how it is being reported
and then used (to impact work in NH, strategy, report on outcomes, etc.)
Meet regularly with the evaluator.for support and accountability
Support the use and integration of data into TF work, victim services, investigations,
prosecution, training and overall strategy to combat trafficking in NH

Protocol

o Maintain updated and agreed upon Standard Operating Procedures for internal TF use
o Work with the AG's office to ensure the production of a statewide protocol

Finance

o Ensure funded partners use the grant, match and other funding as designated and within
the stipulated timeframe

o Ensure responsible spending by all parties which prioritizes victims needs and victim-
centered practice

Manage the budget for committee work, training and outreach events - if there is one

o

o

o

o

o

Grant

o

o

o

o

o

Other

o

o

o

o

o

Gather needed data

Report and support reporting of grant funded partners quarterly and semi-annually
Review and maintain up to date Time to Task/grant deliverable plan, with the Core Team
Maintain contact and good working relationship with the OVC and BJA grant monitors
Keep all partners updated regarding grant goals, timeline, finances and outcomes

Attend annual OVC grantee meeting, DC
Maintain contact with regional anti-trafficking partners, resources, programs
Assist with fundraising as needed
Attend/assist with community outreach and training events
Manage and review all social media and outward facing messages (in partnership with
the Core Team and Community Engagement Committee)


